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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RE,PORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Brownwood
Brownwood, Texas

Report on the Financial Staternents

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of
Brownwood, Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 20 19, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managetnent's Resp onsibility for the Finoncial S t atenrent s

Management is responsible lor the preparation ancl fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this inclr-rdes the desien, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation anci fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Au ditor' s Re sp ons i bility
iVIy responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted m). auclit in
accordance r,r,ith ar"rditing standards generally accepted in the United States olAmerica ancl the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Gouemment Auditing Sltandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards reqr-rire that I plan and perlorm the audit to obtain reasonable asslrrance about rvl-rether the financial
statements are lree from material misstatement.

An audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amorints and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selectecl depend on the auditor's juclgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the ar,rditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design ar-rdit procedures that are appropf iate in the circumstances, but not lor tl-re purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectir.eness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accor-rnting policies used and the reasonableness of signiiicant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe tl'rat the audit eviclence I have obtained is su{ficient and appropriate to provide a basis fol my audit opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ali material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-tvpe activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, ancl the aggregate remaining fund information olthe City of Brownwoocl, Texas,
as ol September 30, 20 19, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flor.r,s tl-rereof
for the )/ear then ended in accordance with accotinting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

G
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Other Matters

Re qnirerl SiQp lemen ta ry lr1forma tion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require tl'rat the management's discussion
and analysis, the schedules ofchanges in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedules of pension contributions
and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-B and 48-55 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part ol financial reporting lor placing the l:asic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I harre applied certain limited
procedures to the requireci supplementary inlormation in accordance with auditing standards eenerally accepted in
the United States ol America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency rvith management's responses to my inqr-riries, the basic
financial statements, and otl-rer knowledge I obtained during my ar-rdit of the basic financial statements. I do not
express an opinion or provide any assllrance on the information because the limited proceclures do not provicle me
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assrlrance.

Other lffinnation

My audit lvas condttcted lor the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Brorvnwood, Texas basic financial statements. The combining ancl comparative financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Tl"re

scheclule of expenditures of fecleral ar,vards is presentecl ibr purposes oladditional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Fedual Regulations Part 200, Unform Adminisn"ahpe Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards and is also not a requirecl part of the basic financial stateme nts.

The combining ancl comparatirre financial statements and the schedule of expenciitr-rres ol lederal arvards are the
responsibilitv of management and were derivecl from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records usecl to prepare the basic financial statements. Such inlormation has been sultjected to the auditing
proceclures appliecl in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain aciclitional procednres, including
comparing and reconciling such information clirectly to the unclerlying accor-rnting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other aclditional procedures in
accordance u'ith auditing standards generally accepted in the Unitecl States of America. In my opinion, the
comltining financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Goaernrnent Auditing Standard"s

In accorclance with Gouemment Auditing Sltandards, I have also issued my report dated January 7, 2020, on my
consideration ol the City of Brownwood, Texas internal control orrer financial reporting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of lar,vs, regr-rlations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing ol internal controi over financial reporting ancl
compliance and the results of that testing, ancl not to provicle an opinion on the effectirreness of the City of
Brownrvood, Texas'internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Tl-rat report is an integral part of an
audit perlormed in accorclance witb Gouernment Auditing Standards in considering City of Brorvnwood, Texas' internal
control over financiai reportine and compiiance.

01,lu
CPA, PC
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City of Brownwood
Managernentts Discussion and Analysis

For Year Ended Septernber 30, 2019
(Unaudited)

As management of the City ol Brownwood, we ofler readers of the City's financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City olBrownwood for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. We encourage
readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the City's
financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City ol Brownwood exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $35,833, I 86 (net position).
Of this amount, $687,033 is restricted for debt service, construction and other uses. The amount invested in fixed assets

is $43,024,608 leaving a negative $(7,878,455) in unrestricted net position.

The government's total net position decreased by $1,358,586. There were increases and decreases in several areas
including a net increase in current assets versus liabilities of $668,780, a net decrease in capital assets ol$2,339,269 and
a net increase in pension liability net oldeferred outflows and inflows of $693,222.
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental activities reported combined ending net position of
$20,057,865, a decrease of ff484,227 in comparison with the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to a net
increase in pension liability net of delerred outflows and inflows of fi673,223.
At the end olthe current fiscal year, unrestricted net position for the governmental activities was a negative $(3,905,551)
as compared to a ne gative $(4, I 45, I I 1) in the prior year, an improvement of $239,560. Net position invested in capital
assets for governmental activities decreased by $576,559. Net position invested in restricted assets lor governmental
activities decreased by fi147,228.
The City's total liabilities increased by $3,384,881 during the current fiscal year primarily due to net pension liability
(excluding deferrals) increasing by $5,002,706.
Total revenue increased by $ 1,083,283 over the prior year. General revenues such as property taxes, sales tax and other
taxes increased by $584, 163 while operating revenues such as water sales, sewer fees and sanitation fees increased by
$499,120.
Expenditures increased by $2,247 ,228. The increases were in two major areas: Public Safety costs increased by
$ l, I 05,582 while General Government and Administration costs increased by $238,869. Operating costs for enterprise
activities such as Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Landfill and Airport increased by $467,052.
The year ended with a net deficit of $ 1,358,586 compared with a deficit of $ 194,641 in the prior year.

Overvier,v of the Financial Staternents

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic
financial statements consist of three components; i) government-wide financial statements,2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two diflerent views of the City through the use of
government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the City.

Required Cornponents of Annual Financial Report

Basic Financial Staternents

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Governrnent-wide Financial Staternents. They provide
both short and long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Staternents. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts ol
the City government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are two parts to
the Fund Financial Statements: l) the governmental funds statements and 2) the proprietary funds statements.
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The next section of the basic financial statements is the Notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some
of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, Required Supplernentary Inforrnation is provided to show
details about the City's pension funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part
olthe statements.

Governrnent-wide Financial Staternents

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview ol the City's finances,
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and
long-term information about the City's financial status as a whole. The two government-wide statements report the City's net
position and how it has changed. Net position is the difference between the City's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring
net position is one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: l) governmental activities; 2) business-type activities; and
3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, street
maintenance, parks and recreation, community meeting facilities, health services, and general administration. Taxes finance
most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to provide. These include the
water, sewer and sanitation services oflered by the City as well as the City operated landfill and airport. The final category is

the component units. Although legally separate from the City, component units such as the Brownwood Economic
Development Corporation and Brownwood Municipal Development District are important to the City because the City
exercises control by appointing its board members.

The Government-wide Financial Statements are on pages 9-13 of this report.

Fund Financial Staternents

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated lor specific activities or objectives.
The City olBrownwood, like all other governmental entities in Texas, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Goverrrrnental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Most of the city's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These
lunds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be
available lor spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting that provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader
a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the
City's programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The Governmental Fund Financiai Statements are on pages l4-18 of this report.

Proprietary Funds - The City of Brownwood has three major proprietary funds. The Utility Fund is used to account for
its water and sewer operations. The Sanitation Fund is used to account for its sanitation service and the operations of the
landfill. The Airport Fund is used to account lor the operations of the Brownwood Regional Airport. These funds are the
same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Proprietary Funds Financial Statements are on pages l9-22 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Staternents - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are on pages 23-47 of this report.

+



Other Inforrnation In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain
supplementary information. This includes combining financial statements and prior year comparisons.

Governrnent-Wide Financial Analysis

The City's combined net position decreased from $37,191,772\ast year to $35,833,186 this year) a decrease of $1,358,586
Although there were avaiety olfactors, the key changes are described under the Financial Highlights section.

flitv of Net Position

Covcmrrrntal

Activitics

Bus incs s -typc

Activitics Totals

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Currcnt and othcrasscts

Capital Asscts

Dclcrrcd Outflows

Tkrtal Asscts

s 9,075,352 S

38,344,735

3,482,689

7,998,602

39,032,385

t,35t,324

5,361,536 S

35,+27,205

8J 1,061

4,778,07 |
37,078,82+

277,077

14,436,888 S

73,771,940

4,333,7r0

12,776,673

76,1 1 1,209

1,628,401

S S

s 50,902,776 S 48,382,311 S 41,639,802 S 42,t33,972 S 92,5+2,578 S 90,516,283

Currcnt liabilitics

bng-tcrm liabilitics

Nct Pcns ion liability

Dclcrrcd Inflows

Total Liabilitics

3,829,853 S

13,980,370

12,776,530

258,158

S 3,269,541

t4,340,578

8,172,830

1,457,270

3,200,709 S

20,276,M3

2,3 15,007

72322

2,769,586

20,92 1,360

1,3 l 6,00 I

477,3+5

7,030,562 S

3+,256,8t3

15,09 1,537

330,480

6,039,127

35,261,938

10,088,83 I

1,934,615

S S

s 30,844,911 S 27,840,219 S 25,8&,481 S 21,484,292 s 56,709,392 S 53,324,51 I

Nct Position:

Invcstcd in capital asscts

nct of rclatcd dcbt

Rcs trictcd

Unrcs trictcd

Total Nct Position

S 23,276,383 S

687,033

(3,905,55 l)

23,852,942 S

83+,261

(4,145,1 1 l) (3,e72,904) (3,674,177)

\9,748,225 S 20,323,857 S 43,024,608 S

687,033

( 7,878,455)

44,176,799

834,261

(7,819,288)

s 20,057,865 S 20,542,092 S r5,775,32t S 16,649,680 s 35,833,186 S 37,19t,772

Analysis of the City's Operations:

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator ola government's financial condition. The assets of
the City of Brownwood exceeded liabilities by $35,833,186 as of September 30, 2019. However, the largest portion of the
City's net position (120%)reflects the City's investment in capital assets (e.g. Iand, buildings, machinery, and equipment),less
any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide services
to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets
is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources n".d.d to iepay that debt must be provided by other sources,
since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City's net position (1.9%)
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, primarily bond funds that must be used
forspecificprojects. Thisleavesanegativeunrestrictedbalanceof$(7,878,455). Thiswasadecreaseofg5g, l67or.Boloover
the prior year.

Governrnental activities: Governmental activities decreased the City's net position by fi484,227 after booking transfers.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities decreased the City's net position by $874,359 alter booking transfers.
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The following table provides a summary of the City's operations for year ended September 30, 2019

City of Brownwood Changes in Net Position

Gove rnmcntal

Activitics

Busincss-typc

Activitics Totals

2019 20 l8 20 l9 20 1B 2019 20lB

S 2,727,766 S

I,794,552

66,449

6,884,919

5,7 t7,843

4,368,343

2,494,950

90 1,906

23,900

6,825,321

5,+t |,453

4,232,935

2O,7 14

|,794,552

86,426

90 I,906

44,654t9,977

329,937

$ 16,206,280 S 16,874,394 S 18,934,046 $ 19,369,344

247,t70

6,884,9 l9
5,7 t7,843

4,698,280

6,82r,321

5,4|,453
4,480, l 05

s 2 1.559.872 S 19,890,465 S 16, 556. I 94 s 17,142,318 S 38,il6,066 S 37,032,783

Revenucs:

Program Rcvcnucs:

Irecs, fincs, and chargcs

lor serviccs

Opcrating grants and

contributions

Capital grants and

contributions

Gr:ncral Rcvcnucs:

Ad valorcm taxcs

Salcs tax

Other rcvcnrrr:s

Total Rcvcnucs

Iixpenscs:

Gcncral govcrnmcnt

and administration

Public Safcty

Strccts

Parks & Community

Iracilitics

Community Dcvelopmcnt

Spccial Rcv Activitics

Watcr & Scrvcr

Sanitation & Landfill

Airport

Intcrest on long-tcrm

dcbt

Total l-lxpcnscs $ 23,i26,099

S 6,263,891 S

t0,193,424

2,778,8t6

2,688,7 l6
68,527

|,276,5r5

456,170

6,025,O22

9,087,842

2,6 l 9,835

2,489,803

r,2n,872

486,744

8,5 14,036

5,361,545

1,335,490

537 482

8,336, I r0
5,028,032

t,379,837

562 287

6,263,891 S

t0,193,424

2,778,8t6

2,688,7 l6
68,52?

1,276,555

8,5 14,036

5,361,545

I,335,490

993,652

6,02r,022

I,OB7,842

2,6 I 9,835

2,489,803

t,2t |,872

8,336, l 50

5,028,032

1,379,837

I,049,03 I

S S $

s 2r,921,r l8 s 15,748,553 S 15,306,306 S 39,474,652 S 37,227,424

Changc in nct position

bclorc transft:rs (2,166,227) S

1,682,000

(2,030,653) S

3,089,398

807,641 S

(1,682,000)

S 1,836,012 S

(3,089,398)

(1,358,586) S (194,641)

Transfcrs

Changc in nct position

Nct position Octobcr I

Nct position Scptcmbe r 30

(484,227) S

20,542,O92

(874,359) S

l 6,649,680

(1,253,386) S

I 7,903,066

S t,058,7 45

r9,483,347

S (r,358,586) S (1s4,641)

37 l9t 772 37 I3

s 20,057,865 S 20,542,092 s r5,7i5,321 S 16,649,680 S 35,833,186 S 37,t91,772

6



Financial Analysis of the City of Brownwood Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governrnental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide inlormation on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the
General Fund was fi5,702,304 as compared to fi4,527,162 in the prior year) an improvement of $1,175,1+2. Total fund
balance was $5,845,867 this year compared to $4,690,890 in the prior year, an improvement of fi\ ,15+,977. These
improvements were primarily due to an increase in the cash and investments baiances in the Ge neral Fund of $6 I I ,7 I 7 .

As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures. These percentages were27.2o/o and27.9o/o respectively compared to23.60/o and24.5o/o in the
prior year.

At September 30, 2019, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of 96,484,71 I compared to
the prior year which was $5,585,919, an increase of $898,792.

Proprietary Funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type ol information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Utility (\Nater Delivery, Wastewater Collection and Wastewater
Treatment), Sanitation (-frash Collection and Landfill) and Airport Funds at the end of the fiscal year amounted to a negative
$(3,972,904). This represented a decrease of fi298,727.

Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget
amendments lall into one of three categories: l) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original
budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

In the General Fund, revenues were over budgeted amounts by $ 1,5 10, 153 or B.B0lo while expenditures came in over budget
by $ 1,41 1,242 or 7 .4o/o. This represented a net positive variance of $98,91 l

Capital Asset and Debt Adrninistration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets lor its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30,
2019,totaisfi73,771,940(netofaccumulateddepreciation). Theseassetsincludebuildings,roadsandbridges,land,machinery
and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be lound in Note 6 of the Basic Financial Statements

Long-terrn Debt. As of September 30, 2019, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $24,825,000. All of this debt
is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. None olthe debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources
(i.e. revenue bonds) since the last remaining revenue bond was refunded in September, 2005.

Additional information regarding the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 9 of the Basic Financial Statements.

7



Econornic Factors

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the City of Brownwood.

I Low unemployment. Brown County's average unemployment rate for 2019 was 3.6Y0 compared to the state average
(3.5%) and national average (3.7o/o).

o Increasing property values. Taxable assessed values for 2019 increased by l.7o/o from g864,05+,+87 in 20lB to
$878,698,5lB in 2019.

r Sales tax collections increased from $ 1.72M in the prior year to $ I .7BM in the current ye ar for the economic development
t/z cent tax, primarily due to improvements in our local economy.

r Sixteen residential certificates of occupancy were issued in 2019.
r Buildingvaluation for both new residential and commercial construction was $l1,798,063 of which only $1,937,470 was

residential.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending Septernber 30, 2020

Goverrrrnental Activities: The property tax rate remained. unchanged from the prior year at .7869 cents per hundred
dollars valuation. Sales tax is projected to increase by 3.5oh over the amount budgeted in the prior year. Budgeted
expenditures in the General Fund are expected to increase by 4o/o. A2o/o pay raise was granted to all city employees.

Business - type Activities: The water base rate was increased by $3.00 per month for a regular residential account with
proportionate increases in larger meters. Sewer and sanitation rates were increased by 3%. The landfill gate rate was
increased by $2.00 per ton.

Requests for Inforrnation

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City of Brownwood's finances for those with an interest in this area.

Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to
Walter Middleton CPA, Director of Finance, City of Brownwood, PO Box l3Bg, Brownwood, TX 76804, (325) 6+6-5775.
Email address is wmiddleton@brownwoodtexas.gov. Complete financial statements of the component unit can be obtained
direct from Brownwood Municipal Development District as detailed in Note I to the Basic Financial Statements.

Emily Cra Walter Middleton, CPA, CGFO
Director of FinanceCity M
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2019

Primary Govcmmcnt
Govcmmcnlal

Activitics
Busincss-typc

Activitics T()tal
Componcnt IJnits

BEDC BMDD

ASSETS:

Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnLs

Poolcd cash dcsigrratcd lor spccial pn>jccls

Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnls
Invcstmcnts
Invcstme nts dcsignatcd lor closurc and

postclosurc
Re ccivablcs, nct
Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpcnsc
f,and hcld lor dcvclopmcnt
Rcstrictcd asscls

Capital asscts, nct

Total Asscts

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Amounts rclzrtcd to pcnsions

T<rral Dclcrrcd Outfl ows ol Rcsourccs

$ 47,420,087 $ +O,788,7 +r $ BB.2OB ,B2B $

$ 221,230 $ 46,133 $

57,72s
3,550

491,561

267,363 $

57,72s
ro,7 49

6,097,798

$ (s07,1s6)

6,307 ,7 t2

I ,064, 108

397,295

7,199
5,606,237

2,501 ,208
26,47 5

3,949
350,000
359,054

38,3+4,73s

r,61,+,573
1,604,3s 1

673,215
3,360

867,068
35,427,20s

1,6t4,573
4,105,559

699,690
7,309

3s0,000
t,226,r22

73,77 |,940

$ 7,261,9s9

$ 3,482,689 $ Bs r,061 $ 4,333,750 $ $

$ 3,482,689 $ 85 1,06 r $ 4,333,750 $ $

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc

Accrucd salarics

Liabilitics payablc lnrm rcstrictcd asscts:

Tax notc payablc
Bonds payablc

Noncuncnt liabilitics:
Custtrmcr utility dcposi ts

Estimatcd liability lor landfill closurc and
postclosurc carc costs

Net pcnsion liability
Compcnsatcd abscnccs:

Portion duc or payablc within onc ycar
Portion duc or payablc altcr onc ycar

Capital leascs payable :

Portion duc or payablc within onc ycar
Portion duc or payable altcr onc year

Tax notc payablc:
Portion duc or payablc within onc ycar

Bonds payablc:

Portion due or payablc within onc ye ar
Portion duc or payablc altcr onc ycar

Tbral Liabilitics

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts rclatcd to pcnsions

Amounts rclatcd to bond rclunding

Total Dcfcrrcd Inflows of Rcsourccs

$ 30,s86,7s3 $ 2s,792,t59 $ s6,378,912 $

$ BI2,T7 T $

1i6,084

69,288

12,7 7 6,530

r,167 ,+21
646, I 95

741,777

2,016,303

32,400

890,712
11,317 ,872

+B7,2TT $

32,O33

t,447
17,697

8+7,92+

1,299,382 $

t+B,t t7

1,447

86,985

8+7,924

$ 77,729
2,+60

7,579
2,397

6,182,168
2,3t5,O07

lsI,920
77,668

I,041,945
1,946,rO7

66,1 53

1,402,303
r 1 ,222,57 6

6, r 82,1 68

15,091,537

r ,319,341
723,863

r,783,722
3,962,+tO

98,553

2,293,Or5
22,540,448

$ 90,16s

$ 241 ,214 fi 72,322 fi 3 13,s36 $ $

16 9+4 t6 94+

$ 258,158 $ 72,322 $ 330,480 $ $

I
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements



CITY OF BRO\AATWOOD, TBXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATBMENT OF NET POSITTON (CONT)

September 30, 2019

Primary Govemment

Govemmental

Activitics

Business-typc

Activitie s Total

Component Units

B[,DC BMDD

NETPOSITION
Invcstcd in capital assets, net ofrelatcd debt

Rcstrictcd for:

Municipal Court
Tourism promotion

Vchicular child safety

Law enforccmcnt

Drug awareness education

Lehnis Museum

Beautification

Dcbt scrvicc

Fabis Park

Construction

IJnrestricted

$ 23,276,383 $ 19,748,225 $ 43,024,608 $ s

28,604

28,978

2 1,832

26,353

3,494

3,224

654

91,213

49,778

432,903

(3,905,55 l) (3,972,904)

28,604

28,978

21,832

26,353

3,494

3,224

654

9t,2r3
49,778

432803
(7,878,+55) l7r 7947

Total Net Position $ 20,057,865 $ 15,775,321 $ 35,833,186 $ - $ 7,171,79+

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Prrrgram Rcvcnuc

Expcnscs
Chargcs

Ftrr Scrviccs

Opcrat.ing Granls Capital Grants
and Contributions and Contributions

Functio ns./p ro grams

Govcrnmcntal Activitics:
Gcneral govcmmcnt
Municipal court
Policc
Firc
Dcvclopmcnt scrviccs
Strcct
Hcalth
Community lacilitics
Parks and rccrcation
Public works/cnginccring
Community dcvclopmcnt
Motcl rax to CVB
Intcrcst on long-tcm dcbt
Spccial rcvcnuc activitics

Total Govcmmcntal Activitics

Busincss-typc Activitics:
Watcr
Wastc watcr collcction
Wastc watc r lrca.rtmc nt
Sanitertion
Landfill
Airport
Intcrcst on long-tcm dcbt

T<rtal Busincss-typc Activitics

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Componcnt IJniLs:

BEDC - Economic dcvclopmcnt
BMDD - Economic dcvclopmcnt

TOTAL COMPONENTUNITS

155,857
r29,+55

B 7,5 3B

357,633
$ 23,726,099 $ 2 727

$ +,620,579
357,809

5,342,O97
+,r90,7 40

886,236
2,77 B,816

302,778
67 4,835

2,0 13,88 I

565, I 66
68,527

191,910
456,t7 0

1,276,sss

$ r,3s9,914 $ + ,7 93 $ r 3,942

501,146
+o,762
95,461

5,7 t6
14,363

900,000

869,680

7,507

45,000

766 $ 1.794 ,552 $ 66,449

$ 5,39 r,893 $
l,829,662
1,292,481
2,2+O,723
3,120,822
l,335,490

537,+82

s,s7 4,9+9 $

3,968,77 5
$

3,r94,736
2,7+a323

7 t9,+97 19,977

$ 15,748,5s3 $ 16,206,280 $ l9 977

$ 39,474,652 $ 18,934,046 $ 1,794,ss2 $ 46,+26

$ s0,000 $

2,525,51 |
$ $

$ 2,57s,s1r $ $ $

See accompanying notes to basic financial statement
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Nct (Exoense) Revenue and Chanse s in Nct Position
Primary Govcmment

Govcmmcntal
Activities

Busincss-typc

Activitics Total
Component IJnits

BEDC BMDD

$ (3,241,930)
(3s 7,80e)

(+,835,23s)
(4, I 35,6 l5)

(783,268)
(2,778,816)

(146,e21)
(s00,380)

(1,926,343)
(565,r 66)
83t,473

(rel,er0)
(456,170)

(+9.2+2)

$ (19,137,332)

(3,24r,93O)
(357,809)

(+,835,23s)
(4, I 35,61 5)

(783,268)
(2,7 7 B,816)

(146,92 l)
(s00,380)

(l ,926,343)
(565, l 66)
ast,47 3

(19 r,910)
(456, r 7o)

(49.242)

$

$ (l9"137 ,332]l

$ l83,056 $

2,139,i l3
(r,292,48t)

954,01 3

(372,499)
(s96,0 r 6)

I83,056
2,r39,t t3

(1,292,+Bt)
954,013

(372,495)
(5e6,0 r 6)
(s37,+82)(537 ,482)

fi 477,70+ fi +77,704

$ (19.137 ,332) fi +77 704 $ (18,6s9,628)

$ (5o,ooo) $
(2,525,51 l)

$ (50.000) $ (2,525,51 1)

r2



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATE,MENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONT.)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Nct (Expcnsc) Rcvcnuc and Changcs in Nct Position
Primarv Govcmmcnt

Govcrnmc ntal
Activitics

Busincss-typc
Activitics Tbral

Componcnt IJniLs
BEDC BMDD

CHANGE IN NETPOSITION:

Nct Incomc (Expcnsc)

Gcncral Rcvcnucs:
Taxcs:

Ad valorcm
Sales

Othcr
Earnings on invcstmcnts
Misce llancous
Gain (loss) on disposal olasscts

Translcrs
ToLll Rcvcnuc

CHANGE IN NETPOSITION

NETPOSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NETPOSITION - END OFYEAR

$ (19,137,332) fi 477 ,704 $ (18,659,628) $ (50,000) fi (2.525 ,s 1l)

$ 6,884,919 $

5,7 17 ,B+3
4,041 ,80 I

r2r,4+o
r 56,662

44,4+O

I,682,000

6,884,9 19 $

5,7 17 ,843
4,041,801

192,288
288,320
T7 5,87 T

$ $

70,848
13 1,658
t27,431

( 1 ,682.000)

l,B 13,094

l6l,l l9
+7,9+O

(62)

$ 18,653,10s $ (1,352,063) $ 17,301,042 $ fi 2.022,091

$ (484,227) $

20,5+2,O92

(874,3se) $

16,649,680

(1,3s8,s86) $

5t t9l 772

(50,000) $

s0,000

(503,420)

7,675,2r+

$ 20,0s7,86s $ 1s,775,32t $ 35,833,186 $ $7 171 794

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

BAI-ANCE SHEETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2019

ASSETS

ASSETS:
Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
f nvcstmcnts
Rcceivablcs, nct
Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpcnsc
Land hcld for dcvclopmcnt
Rcstrictcd asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FLIND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc
Accrucd salarics
Compcnsated abscnccs
Intcrnzrl balanccs

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFtrRRED INFLOWS OF RESOIIRCES
Unavailablc rcvcnuc

FLIND BALANCES:
Nonspcndablc:

Invcnt<>ry
Prcpaid cxpcnsc

Restrictcd for:
Municipal Court
Tourisrn promotion
Vchicular child saf<:ty

Law cnftrrccmcnt
Drug awarcncss cducation
Lchnis Muscum
Bcautification
Dcbt scrvicc
Fabis Park
Construction

Cornmittcd to:
Construction

Assigncd to:
Hcalth and nutrition pr()grams

IJnassigncd

TOTAL FT]ND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILI'TIES AND FI]]\D BALANCES

Major Fund
Gcncral

Fund

Nonmajor Fund
Othcr Total

Govcrnmcntal Govcrnmcntal
Funds Funds

$ (21,401) $

7,17+
5,606,237
2,099,629

26,475
3,949

350,000
I 16,404

2+2,63r $

25

245,97 1

2+2,650

22r,230
7,t99

5,606,237
2,345,600

26,+7 5

3,949
350,000
359,054

$ B,l88,467 $ 73t,277 $ 8,919,744

$ 778,062 $

109,430
t,167 ,+21

2r,925

B 12,l7l
I16,084

t,167 ,+21

34,109 $

6,654

(21,92s)

$ 2,076,838 $ IB,B3B $ 2,09s,676

$ 265,762 $ 73,595 $ 339,357

$ 26,47 5 $

3,9+9

91,2 13

+9,778
+32,903

4,561

52,19+
8,1 95

26,+7 5

3,949

4,561

52,t94.
5,7 tO,+99

$

28,604
28,978
21,832
26,353

3,+9+
3,22+

654

28,60+
28,978
2r,832
26,353

3,+94
3,22+

65+
9 i,213
49,778

+32,903

5,702,30+

$ 5,845,867 $ 638,844 $ 6,484,71 l

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BAI-ANCE,
SHEETS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30,2019

TOTAL FUND BAI-ANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL F'I,JNDS

Amounts rcportcd lor gove mme ntal activitics in thc statcmcnt of nct position arc diffcrcnt bccausc:

Capital asscts uscd in govcmmcntal activitics arc not currcnt financial rcsourccs and arc not rcportcd in thc
govcmmcntal funds balancc shcct, nct olaccumulatcd dcprcciation and amortization of $60,961,686.

Somc ol the City's taxes will bc collcctcd altcr ycar cnd, but arc not availablc soon enough to pay for thc

currcnt pcriod's cxpcnditurcs and arc rcportcd as unavailablc rcvcnuc in thc govcrnmental lunds.

Rcvcnucs rcccivablc on warranls arc not currcnt financial rcsourccs and arc not rcportcd in thc govcmmcntal
lunds balancc shcct, nct olallowancc lor uncollcctcd warrants ol$185,390.

Dclcrrcd inflows fiom bond rclunding arc not rcportcd in thc govcmmcntal lunds balancc shcct

Lons-te m liabilitics arc not duc and payablc in thc current pcri<ld and arc n()t rcportcd in thc qovcmmcntal

lunds balancc shcct

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

fi 6,+84,7 r I

38,344,73s

339,357

l5s,608

(16,944)

(25,249,602)

$ 20,057,86s

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE,S IN ruND BAI-A,NCES - GOVERNMENTAL F'UNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Major Fund
Gcncral

Frrnd

Nonmajor Fund

Othcr
Govcmmcntal

Funds

T<ltal

Govcmmcntal
FundsREVENI]ES:

Ad valorcm taxcs

Salcs taxcs

Othcr taxcs

Fincs
Liccnscs :rnd lccs

Chargcs lor scrviccs

In tc rgovc mmcn tal
Intcrcst
Grants and contributions
Misccllanco us

Tfital Rcvcnuc

FXPFNDITT]RES:
Currcnt:

City Council
Administration
City Sccrctary
Financc,/ acco unting
Municipal Court
Policc
Firc
Dcvclopmcnt scrviccs

Strc ct
Hcalth
Communily scrviccs
Inlc rqovc mmcntal
Uriliry billing
Community lacilitics
Opcnrtions supp()rt
Purchasing/warcho usc

Parks and rccrcatiorr
Flcct scrviccs

City Attomcy
C<lmmunity dcvclopmcnt
Public works/cntinccring
Emcrgcncy managcmcnt
Human rcsourccs
Fire Marshal
Gcncral lund contingcncy
Inlormation tcchnology
Transporkrtion muscum
Motcl tax to CVB
Othe r
Spccial rcvcnuc lunds
Czrpital outlay

Dcbt Scrvicc:

. Principzrl
Intcrcst

Total Expcnditurcs

FXCESS (DEFICIENCg OF REVENUES
OVER E)<PENDITURES

5,588,045 $

5,7 t7 ,a43
4,041,80 I

283,955
I IB,B2B
412,958

I ,55 7,309
t0+,7 +7
946,321

7 ,OO5,+54
5,7 t7 ,843
4,041,801

2B3,9ss
I l8,B2B
412,958

1,557,309
t2r,4+o

I ,861,001
514,295

$ 1,4r7 ,409 $

t26 7+6

16,693
914,680
387,549

$ I8,898,553 $ 2,736,331 $ 2r,634,88+

$ 58,421 $

268,303
I i 1,408
363,247
332,7 17

5,489,835
3,892,630

854,424
2,03r,54r

283,226
630,s 18

252,05 I

307,431
+97,3+5
17 0,7 3a

I87,687
r,6r+,720
1,070,861

203, 1 3s
68,527

536, l 32
t9,237

265,89 I

128,009
65,082

79t,425
I Bs,2s6
r9r,910
67 ,97 4

58,421
268,303
1 I 1,408
363,247
332,7 17

5,489,835
3,892,630

854,42+
2,O3t,541

283,226
630,5 I B

252,0s1
307,+31
+97,345
170,73A
187,687

t,61+,720
I,070,861

203, l 3s
68,527

536,t32
t9,237

265,891
128,009
65,082

791,42s
1Bs,2s6
19i,910
67 ,97 4

1,268,078
23s,309

$

1,268,078
235,309

960,780
464,7 67

960,780
464,7 67

$ 20.93 9,681 $ 2.928 ,934 $ 23,868,615

l6

$ (2,041,128) $ (192,603) $ (2.23s.73i)



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BAI-ANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONT.)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Maior Fund
Gcncral

Fund

Nonmajor Fund
Othcr Total

Govcrnmcntal Govcrnmcntal
Funds Funds

EXCESS (DEFICIENC9 OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OJSES)
Transfcrs in
Transfcrs out
Capital lcasc procccds
Procecds from salc ofcapital asscts

Nct Othcr Financing Sourccs (Uscs)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OFYEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OFYEAR

$ (2,041,r28) $ (1e2,603) fi (2,233,73r)

$ i,736,432 $

1,411,233
48,440

75,720 $

(i 3e,302)
|,812,r52

( i 39,302)
I,+tt,233

+8,440
$ 3, I 96, I 05 $ (63,582) $ 3, I 32,523

$ 1,154,97 7 $

4,690,890

(2s6,lBs) $

895,029

898,792

5,585,919

$ 5,845,867 $ 638,8++ $ 6,484,71 1

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATE,MENTS OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE,S IN trUND BAI-ANCES TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIE S

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NET CHANGE IN FUND BAI-ANCES. TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Thc changc in nct position rcportcd for govcrnmcntal activitics in thc statcmcnt of activitics is diffcrcnt bccausc

Governmcntal funds rcport capital outlays as cxpcnditurcs whilc govcrnmcntal activitics rcport cost of thesc
asscts allocatcd ovcr thcir cstimatcd livcs as dcprcciation and amortization cxpcnsc.

Capital asscts purchascd
Dcprcciation and amortization

Thc issuancc of long-tcrm dcbt providcs current financial rcsourccs to govcrnmcntal funds, while the rcpayrncnt
ofthc principal oflong-tcrm dcbt consurncs thc currcnt financial rcsourccs ofsovcrnrncntal funds. Ncithcr
transaction, howcvcr, has any cffcct on nct position.

Principal advanccs on lons-tcrm dcbt
Principal paymcnts on long-tcrm dcbt
Additional accrual of compcnsatcd abscnccs
Currcnt amortization of bond prcmiums and dcfcrrcd arnount on rcfunding
Changc in nct pcnsion liability and rclatcd dcfcrrcd outflows and inflows

Somc of thc City's taxcs in thc statcmcnt of activitics do not providc currcnt financial rcsourccs and arc not
rcported as rcvcnuc in thc funds.

Rcvcnucs on warrants and citations will not bc collcctcd for scvcral months aftcr thc City's fiscal ycar cnd. Thcy
arc not considcrcd availablc rcvcnuc and arc not includcd in thc govcrnmcntal fund. Rcvcnucs accrucd lrom
warrants and citations dccrcascd by this amount this ycar.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 898,792

2,2+9,826
(2,937,+76)

(1,411,233)

I,516,33+
(9,786)

8,s97
(675,830)

(1 20,534)

(2,sr7)

$( +B+,227)

IB



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITIOI{
PROPRIE,TARY FUNDS

September 30,2019
Busincss-Tvpc Activitics - Entcrprisc Fund

M{or Funds

Utility
Fund

Sanitation

Fund
Airport
Fund Total

CURRENTASSETS:
Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Poolcd cash dcsignatcd for spccial projccts

Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Invcstmcnts

Invcstmcnts dcsignatcd lor closurc and postclosurc
Accounts rcccivablc, nct

Invcntory
Prcpaid expcnscs

Total Currcnt Asscts

NONCURRENT ASSET'S:

Rcstrictcd asscts

Capital asscts, nct
Total Noncurrcnt Asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Amounts rclatcd to pcnsions

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc
Accrucd salarics

Capital leascs payablc

Tax notc payablc

Bonds payablc

Compensatcd abscnccs

Total Currcnl Liabilitics

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:

Tax notc payablc

Bonds payablc

Total Liabilities Payablc from Rcstrictcd Asscts

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Compcnsatcd absences

Nct pcnsion liability
Customcr watcr mctcr dcposits

Capital lcascs payablc
Bonds payablc

Accrucd landfill closurc and postclosurc carc costs

Total Noncurrcnt Liabilitics

TOTAI, I,IABII,ITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Amounts rclatcd to pcnsions

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION:
Invcstcd in capital asscts, nct of rclatcd dcbt
Unrcstrictcd

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 2,028,388 $ 2,343,622 $ 122,458 $ +,494,468

$ 862,341 $

$ 22,083 $

57,725

2,s00

253,628

23,942 $ l0B $

400

46,t33
s7,725

3,550
491,561

1,614,573

1,604,35 I

673,2t5
3,360

).,r04,+37

584,655

3,360

650

237,933
1,614,573

466,524 33,390

88,560

3,280 $

7,586,757

|,447 $

3,009,524
867,068

35,427,2050,924

$ 25,693,265 $ 7,590,037 $ 3,010,971 fi 36,294,273

fi 27,72t,6s3 $ 9,933,659 $ 3,133,429 $ 40,788,74r

$ 398,3 15 $ 378,497 $ 74,249 $ 851,061

$ 398,315

$ 51,613 $

14,495

853,875

236,720

$ 378,497 $ 74,2+9 $ Bs l 061

318,776 $

l+,768
I 84,1 59

I 16,822 $

2,770
3,911

66,153

487,21r
32,033

1,041,945

66,153

1,402,3031,165,583

67,8I 1 57 153 26,956 l5l 920

$ 1,751,097 $ 1,213,8s6 $ 216,612 $ 3,lBl,s65

$ $ $ 1,447 $ 1,447

t+ +t7 3,280 t7 697

$ 14,417 $ 3,280 $ 4+7 $ 19,144

$ 34,994 $

1,083,+74

847,924

536,827

9,507,576

28,175 $

1,029,563

14,499 $

20 1,970

77,668
2,315,007

B+7,924

1,946, l07
tt,222,576

1,409,280

1,7 15,000

6, l82,168 6, l82,l68
$ 12,010,795 $ i0,364,r86 $ 216,469 $ 22,591,450

$ 13,776,309 $ I 1,581,322 $ 434,528 $ 25,792, 159

$ 33,848 $ 32 164 $ 6,310 fi 72,322

$ 33,848 $ 32 164 $ 6,310 fi 72,322

$ 13,436,779 $

873,032
3,37 1,986 $ 2,939,460 $

(4,673,316) (t72,620)

$ 14,309,811 $ (1,30i,330) $ 2,766,840 $ 15,775,321

19,748,225

(3,972,904)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATE,ME,NTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN trUND NET POSITIOI{ PROPRIE,TARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30,2019

Busincss-Tvoc Activitics - Entcrorisc Fund
Maior Funds

Utility
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

Airport
Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES:
Chargcs for scrvicc
Misccllancous

Total Opcrating Rcvcnucs

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Pcrs<>nncl scrviccs

Supplics
Contractrral
Maintcnancc
Sundry chargcs
Support scrviccs
Dcprcciation and amortization

Total Opcrating Expenses

OPERATTNG GArN (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE:
Salc of cquipmcnt
Grants and contributions
Intcrcst incomc
Intcrcst cxpcnsc

Nct Non-Opcrating Rcvcnuc (Expcnsc)

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS:
Opcrating translcrs in
Opcrating translcrs out

Nct Opcratins Transflbrs

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION. ENDING

$ 9,625,225 $ 5,993,r79 $ 719,534

$ 9,5+3,724 $

B I,501
5,943,059 $

50, l 20

719,+97 $

5t

16,206,280
131,658

$ 16.337 ,938

$ 1,659,469 $

2++,762
2,832,327

705,059
769,4+5
768,20+

r,53+,7 7 0

1,709,954 $

512,088
913,499
282,832
377,+96
+73,+00

r,092,276

3,7 16,76+
r, i B9,3 1B

3,8 10,884
1,054,350
1,146,941

r,2+r,604
3,05 I,2 l0

347,341 $

432,+68
65,058
66,459

42+,t6+
$ 8,s 14,036 $ s,361,s45 $ r,33s,490 $ 15.211 ,07 |

$ r,l l 1,l 89 $ 631,634 $ (615.956) $ 1,126,867

$

TB,6+4
(+oo.6++\

51,556
( 1 30.303)

t76 $

19,977
648

(6.535)

r27,+31
19,977

7O,B48
(537.+82)

5,550 $ 121,705 $

$ (37 6,450) $ 42,958 $ t+,266 $ (319,226)

$ 734,739 $ 67 +,592 $ (60 l ,690) e BO7,641

$ $ $ 187,080 $ 187,080
( r ,869.080)(822,000) (l,o47,o8o)

$ (B22,000) $ n.047 ,080)$ l87,0B0 $ (1,682.000)

$ (87,26r) $

t+,397,072

(372,+BB) $

(928.842)

(414,6i0) $

3, 18 1 ,450

(874,35e)

16,649,680

$ 14,309,8n $ (r,301,330) $ 2,766,840 $ 15,775,321

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIE,TARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Utility
Fund

Busincss-Typc ActMtics - Entcrprisc Fund
Malor Funds
Sanitation

Fund
Airport
Fund 'fotal

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIE,S:
Cash rcccivcd from customcrs
Cash pa;,rncnts to supplicrs for goods and scrviccs
Cash paymcnts to cmployccs ft>r scrviccs

Nct Cash Providcd (Uscd) by Opcrating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Incrcasc in cust<>mcr mctcr dcposits
Opcrating transfcrs in
Opcr:rting trzrnsfcrs out

Nct C:rsh Providcd (Uscd) by Noncapital Finzrncing
Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATtrD
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principnl payrncnts on b<>nds

Principal pzrlrrncnts on tax notc
Pr<>cccds from notcs and capitzrl lcascs

Principal payrncnts on notcs and capital lcascs

Procccds lrom sellc ofcapital asscts

Acquisiti<ln and c()nstruction of czrpital asscts

Grant incr>rrrc

Intcrcst cxpcnsc

Nct Cash Prowidcd (Uscd) by Capital and Rclatcd
Financing Activitics

CASH }'LOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchasc of invcstmcnts
Salc of invcstmcnts
Intcrcst incomc

Nct Cash Providcd (Uscd) by Invcsting Activitics

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EOI]IVALENTS

fi 2,788,424 fi 2,360,682

$ 9,s58,909 $

(5, l 13,s79)
( 1 ,6s6,906)

5,978,499 $
(t,933,726)
( 1 .684,09 1)

719,299 $

(507,666)
(336,657)

r6,256,707
(7,55+,97 r)
(3.677.65+\

$ n25 ,024) $ s,024,082

$ 24,707 $

(822,000)

$ $ 2+,707
I87,080

( 1 .869.080)

I87,080
( r,047,080)

$ (797,293) $ (1,047,080) $ 187,080 $ (1.6s7.293)

ll (1,130,000) $ (230,000) $ $

385,984
( I 32,e70)

5,550
(+2s,62+)

B+7,316
(708,2e l )

12r,705
(e6e,e67)

(64,220)

(t2,9+6)
176

19,97 7

(6,535)

(l ,360,000)
(64,220)

l,233,300
(Bs+,207)
t27,431

(1,399,591)
t9,977

(s4e, l ee)(412,36r) ( r 30,303)

$ (r,713,42 r) $ ( 1,06s,s40) $ (63,548) $ (2,846,50e)

$ (2, t++,Br+) $

1,892,580
I8,644

(1,766,035) $

I,490,805
5 I,556

(+7,4es) $

46,850

649

(3,958,348)

3,+30,235
70,849

$ (233,5e0) fi (223,67+) fi (+57,26+)

$ 44,120 $ 20,388 $

+,209

(1,+e2) $

totq

63,016

892,37 +CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 886,146

CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS - END OFYEAR $ 930,266 $ 24,597 $ $ 9s5,390

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
ARY FUNDS ONT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business-Typc Activitics - Entcrprisc Fund
Maior Funds

Utility
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

Airport
Fund Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATINGACTIVITIES

OPERATTNG GArN (LOSS)

ADJUSTMENTS TO REC ONCILE OPERATING
GAIN (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Dcprcciation and amortizat ion
Closurc and postclosurc carc costs

Changcs in asscts and liabilitics:
Rcccivablcs
f nvcntoric's
Prcpaid cxpcnsc
Accounts peryable

Accrucd salarics
Compcnsatcd abscnccs
Pcnsion asscts and liabilitics

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

$ 1,r 1 l,i89 $ 631,634 $ (615,956) $ 1,r26,867

|,53+,770

(66,316)

\23,24+
(i,Br4)

B4,7BB

6,90 1

22,357
(26,695)

\,os2,276
630,202

(14,680)

(4,6 r 3)

5,7 67

(lB,141)
38,237

42+,r6+

(235)
(32,535)

BB,B54

937
1,290

8,457

3,051,2 l0
630,202

(B 1,23 r)
90,709
(1,814)

169,029
r 3,605
5,506

19,999

$ 2,788,424 $ 2,360,682 $ (r2s,024) $5 82

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019

NOTE, I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Statement

The City ol Brownwood, Texas was incorporated in I BB4 and adopted its Home Rule Charter in April, 1955, under the
provisions of Act 279,P.A. 1909, as amended (Home Rule City Act). The City operates under a council-manager lorm
of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public salety (police and fire), highways
and streets, sanitation and social services, cultural-recreation, public improvements, pianning and zoning and general
adminisl-rative services.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP lor state and local sovernments
through its pronouncements (Statements and interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established by
GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

Financial Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the City (primary government) and its component units, the Brownwood Economic
Development Corporation (BEDC) and Brownwood Municipal Development District (BMDD). As defined by GASB No.
14, component units are legally separate entities that are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance
of their operating or financial relationships with the City.

BEDC was organized exclusively lor the purpose ol benefiting and accomplishing public purposes of the City of
Brownwood, Texas, by promoting, assisting and enhancing economic development activities lor the City as provided by
the Development Corporation Act of 1979 as amended. Because the directors of the Corporation were appointed by the
City olBrownwood City Council, the Corporation was included in the City olBrownwood annual financial statements as

a component unit olthe City. The City of Brownwood called for a special election to terminate BEDC and authorized the
creation of the BMDD. The proposal was approved by the voters on May 7 , 2016. A plan of dissolution was adopted
which involved satisfying all bonds, debts and financial obligations and contributing any remaining assets to City of
Brownwood. Contingency funds of $50,000 were placed in a reserve/escrow account to pay future miscellaneous Project
expenses/costs and unknown contingencies including potential claims. After all liabilities were paid the remaining balance
in the escrow account was to be contributed to City of Brownwood. BEDC remained in existence for liability purposes
for a period olthree years from the date a Certificate of Dissolution was issued and was terminated during this fiscal year.

BMDD is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the City olBrownwood and has the powers and duties given by
Section 377 of the Texas Local Government Code (Act). The l)istrict was established for the purpose oldeveloping and
financing all permissible development projects prescribed by the Act. 'fhe District receives its primary lunding from a
local sales tax approved by the voters. The affairs of the District are managed by a Board of Directors. The Board has

five members appointed by the lVlayor of the City ol Brownwood with the approval ol the City of Brownwood City
Council. The BMDD is reported as a component unit due to the City's power to appoint a voting majority of the Board.

Condensed statements of the discretely presented component units are shown on the Statement ol Ne t Position and the
Statement of Activities in separate component unit columns.

Complete financial statements of the BMDD can be obtained directly as follows:

Brownwood Municipal Development District
50 I Center Avenue
Brownwood, Texas 76801
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATE,ME,NTS (CONT.)

September 30, 2019

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position)
report information on all of the activities ofthe City. The eflect ofinterfund activity, within the governmental and business-
type activities columns, has not been removed from these statements. Ali interlund charges are charges for goods or
services provided. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

f'he statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given program are o{Iset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues include l)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, serwices, or privileges provided by a
given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not properiy included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate lunds in order to aid financial
management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for governmental and proprietary
activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major
funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Govemmental funds are those lunds through which most governmental lunctions typically are financed. The
measurement focus of the governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.

The City has presented the following major governmental fund:

General Fund - General Fund is the main operating lund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial
resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by
law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures,
fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

Additionally, the government reports the lollowing nonmajor governmental funds:

Capital Project Fund Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction olmajor capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds).

Debt Service Fund Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Special Revenue Fund - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than special assessments or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are
included on the Statement of Net Position.

The City has presented the following major proprietary funds:

Utility Fund - Utility Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer serwices to the residents of the
City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the water and sewer system and
billing and collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the paynent of,
long-terrn debt principal and interest lor water and sewer debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility
customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the funds.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE.XAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2019

NOTtr I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE,S (CONT.)

Basis of Presentation (Cont.)

Sanitation Fund Sanitation Fund is used to account for the revenues and expense associated with providing
garbage removal services to the citizens of the City of Brownwood as well as the operation of the municipal solid
waste landfill. All costs are financed through charges to customers.

Airport Fund - Airport Fund is used to account for the operation of the Brownwood Regional Airport. AII costs are
financed through fuel sales and setwices to customers which include hanger rentals. Major funding has been
provided by state and federal grants.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include all cost of personnel and contractual
services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as

non-operating revenues and expenses.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing ol the
measurement made, regardless of the measurement locus applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements lor the proprietary fund are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all
assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis ol
accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed. Expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current hnancial resources measurement focus and are
accounted for using the modified accruai basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue s

are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means
the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property taxes as available if they
are collected within 60 days after year end. A one-year availability period is use d for recognition of all other Governmental
Fund revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures
are recorded only when payment is due.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for serrrice, interest income and
intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year end on behalf of the government are also
recognized as revenue. All other governmental fund revenues are recognized when received.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), the City's
policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental
funds, the City's policy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive
classifications-committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund balances.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

L Prior to October 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council the proposed operating budget for the upcoming
fiscal ye ar. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Prior to October l, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.
4. Formai budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund and

Proprietary Funds.

2s



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S'fO BASIC FINANCIAI, STATE,MENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2019

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Cont.)

The City of Brownwood prepares its annual budget on a basis (budget basis), which diflers from generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis). The budget and all transactions are presented in accordance with the City's method
(budget basis) in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund to provide meaningful comparison of actual results
with the budget. The differences between budget basis and GAAP basis are shown in the Notes to Budgetary Comparison
Schedule.

Cash and Investments

For the purpose olthe Statement of Net Position "pooled cash and cash equivaients" includes all demand, savings accounts
and certificates of deposit of the City. Investments consist of investments in public funds investment pools and are stated
at cost which approximates fair market value. Cash of all funds, including restricted cash, but excluding debt service funds
is pooled into common pooled accounts in order to maximize investment opportunities. Each fund whose monies are
deposited in the pooled account has an equity therein. An individual fund's pooled cash and cash investments are available
upon demand and are considered to be cash equivalents.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market. Inventories olthe general fund and proprietary funds consist
of supplies held for consumption.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Any residual balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
governmental-wide financial statements as "internal baiances".

Transactions Between Funds

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund translers and are included in the results of operations of both
Govemmental and Proprietary Funds.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivabies consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances
for uncollected accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major
receivable balances for the governmental activities include ad valorem and sales taxes. Business-t)?e activity receivable
balances are from utility sales.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and inlrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial
statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical
cost is not available. Donated assets are valued at their fair market value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance
are recorded as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Assets are capitalize d that have an original cost of $2,500 or more and over three years of useful life . Depreciation has
been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated useful Iives are as follows:

Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment
Improvements

l0-40 Years
l0-40 Years
3- l0 Years

l0-20 Years
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S TO BASIC STATE,MENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2019

NOTtr I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Capital Assets (Cont.)

Improvements and equipment for each cell at the City's landfill are depreciated over the time period that each cell is

receiving solid waste.

Compensated Absences

The City Council has adopted a policy whereby employees are paid lump sum payments for vacation, sick leave and
holiday leave if they leave City employment. Upon termination, up to twenty-seven days of accumulated vacation at lull
pay, up to forty-five days of accumulated sick ieave at full pay and up to ten days of accumulated holiday ieave will be paid
if the employee meets the prescribed conditions. Civil service employees are paid up to twenty-three days of accumulated
vacation for police and up to forty-five days of accumulated vacation for firehghters, up to ninety days of accumulated sick
leave and up to ten days of accumulated holiday leave.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that aflect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could di{Ier
from those estimates.

Government-wide and Proprietary Net Position

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components:
o Net investment in capital assets consist of historical cost of capital assets less accumulated depreciation and less

any debt that remains outstanding that was use d to finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less

delerred inflows of resources related to those assets.

o Restricted net position consist of assets that are restricted by the City's creditors, by enabling legislation, by
grantors and by other contributors.

o ljnrestricted all other net position is reported in this category.

Govemmental Fund Balance

The City follows GASB No. 54 Fund Balnnce Reporting and Gouanmmtal Fund'bpe Defmiilns which provides clearly defined
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance more
transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes
lor which resources can be used:

o Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained intact
o Restricted fund balance amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through constitutional

provisions, or by enabling legislation.
o Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level

of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose uniess
the government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint

e Assigned fund baiance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by
the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority

o Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported only in the
general fund

City Council establishes fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. Assigned fund balance is

established by City Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended lor specific purposes.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

September 30,2019

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that appiies to a luture period and so will not be re cognized as an outflow of resource s (expenses,/expenditure)

until then. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, this item, amounts related to
pensions, is reported on the government wide statement of position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section lor deferred inflows ol
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows olresources, represents an acquisition olnet position
that applies to a future period and so wili not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City
has three items that qualily lor reporting in this category. Two of the items, amounts re lated to pensions and amounts
related to bond refunding, are reported on the government wide statement of position. The City has another item which
arises only under a modified accrual basis olaccounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingiy, the item,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts are delerred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Deferred outflows of resources are used to report consumptions of net position by the City that are applicable to a future
reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are used to report acquisitions olnet position by the City that are applicable
to future reporting periods. The delerred inflow is reclassified to revenue on the government-wide financial statements.

Pensions

For purposes ofmeasuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and delerred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions toldeductions lrom fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the respective fiduciary. For this purpose,
plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported lor the employee, which is when
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

NOTE,2: PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes are levied by October l, in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February l, of the year following the ye ar in which imposed.
OnJanuary I, of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest
ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become due or past due and receivable
within the current period or expected to be collected during the sixty day period after the close of the fiscal year.

NOTE.3 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City places its investable funds in investments authorized by Texas law (The Public Funds Investment Act-
Government Code Chapter 2256) in accordance with investment policies approved by the City Council of the City. Both
state law and the City's investment policies are subject to change. Under Texas law and City policy, the City is required
to invest its funds under written investment policies that primarily emphasize safety ol principal and liquidity and that
address investment diversification, yield, maturity and the quality and capability ol investment management. All City
funds must be invested in a manner that provides the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting
the daily cash flow demands of the City. The objectives of the City's investment policy are safety, availability,
diversification and highest rate olreturn. The Public Funds Investment Act requires the City to have independent auditors
perform test procedures related to investment practices approved by the Act. The City is in substantial compliance with
the requirements of the Act and with local policies.
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NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONT.)

Legal Investments
The City is authorized by statute to invest in (a) U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, (b) Repurchase Agreements with a
maximum maturity at purchase of 90 days and an average maturity at any point in time not exceeding 30 days, (c)

Certificates of Deposit with a maturity of one year or less insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or
collateralized by pledged securities, (d) Government,/Private Sponsored Investment Funds, (e) Notes of the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, Student Loan Marketing Association, Federal Farm
Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank with a maximum maturity ol 2 years and average maturity not exceeding I
year, (f) no load Money Market Mutual Funds with dollar weighted average maturity of 90 days or less and maintenance
of a stable net asset value of $ i per share and no load Mutual Funds with an average weighted maturity of less than 2 years
rated no less than AAA, (S) Commercial Paper with a maturity of less than 270 days and rates not less than A-l or P-1,
(h) Bankers Acceptances with an maturity of 270 days or less, (i) GNMA Securities with a stated final maturity of i 0 years
or less and fi) Direct Obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies.

Custodial Credit Risk

City lunds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract and investment policy
pursuant to state statute. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with its agent approved pledged securities
authorized by Government Code Chapter 2257 Collateral for Public Funds in an amount sufficient to protect City lunds
on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of
the dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. At September 30, 2019, $1,120,820, of the
City's deposit balances were exposed to custodial credit risk by being uninsured by FDIC but collateralized by securities
held by the pledging financial institution's agent not in the City's name.

Interest Rate Risk

For short term liquidity requirements, the City utilized two local government investment pools. TexPool is managed by
Federated Investors lor the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and was created to invest funds on behalf of Texas
political subdivisions. The pool operates on a $ I net asset value basis and allows same day or next day redemptions and
deposits. At September 30, 2019, TexPool's portfolio maintained a weighted average maturity of approximately 34 days.
The other local government investment pool utilized by the City is TexStar which is managed by First Southwest andJP
Investment Management, Inc. At September 30, 2019, TexStar's portfolio maintained a weighted average maturity of
approximately 22 days. TexPool and TexStar's investment policies limit the weighted average maturity to 60 days. The
pools do not invest in derivatives. In order to maintain a stable $ I price of the funds, the pools will sell portfolio holdings
if the ratio of the market value of the portfolio divided by the book value olthe portfolio is less than .995 or greater than
1.005. The $ I price is not guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas, the Comptroller of Public Accounts, the pools or
their administrators.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. State law and
City policy limit investments in local government investment pools to those rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating agency. At September 30, 20 19, the City's investments in TexPool and
TexStar were both rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's.
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NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONT.)

Cash for Cash Flows Statement

Proprietary funds cash and cash equivalents at Septembe r 30, 2019 are as follows:

Uriliry
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

Airport
Fund

Pooled cash and cash cquivalcnts
Poolcd cash dcsignatcd lor spccial projccts
Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Rcstrictcd cash

Rcstriced lor dcbt scrvice paymcnts
Rcstrictcd lor drug awarcncss cducation
Rcstrictcd lor law cnlorccmcnt
Rcstrictcd lor vchicular child salcty
Rcstrictcd lor bcautifi cation
Rcsrrictcd ftrr municipal court
Rcstrictcd lor lourism promotion
Rcstrictcd lor Lchnis Muscurn
Rcstrictcd lor Fabis Park
Restrictcd lor construction or purchasc offixcd asscts

Rcstrictcd lor customcr dcposits

Total Rcstrictcd Asscts

Restricted assets included $967,5 l4 in cash and $258,608 in investments.

NOTE 5: RECEIVABLES

A summary of the net receivables at September 30, 2019 is as follows:

Ad valorem taxcs
Salcs taxcs
Utility
Warrants and citations
Airport
Grants rcccivablc
PILOT paymcnts
Othcr rcccivablcs
Notcs rcccivable

Lcss allowancc lor uncollcctablc accounts
Rcccivablcs, nct

I ,064,108

$ 22,Oa3 $

57,725
2,s00

23,942 $ 108

447 958
650

5

400
l9

Total $ 930,266 $ 24,s97 $ 527

NOTE 4: RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain cash balances and investments are restricted by constraints externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
laws or regulations. The following is a summary of restricted assets grouped by restriction at September 30, 20 l9:

$

Govcrnmcntal
Activitics

Busine ss-typc

Activitics

69,288 $

3,494
26,950
2r,832

1,350

28,754
30,800

3,224
50,1 l0

123,2s2

19,144

847,924

$ 359,0s4 $ 867,068

Govcrnmcntal
Activitics

Busincss-typc

Activitics
Componcnt

Unit - BMDD
$ 366,483 $

994,847

340,998

1 65,1 65
474,605
521,770

3,056,813

16,7 t2
19,977

18,464

3l4,9BB

7 49,120

$

$ 2,863,868 $
(362,660)

3,1I 1,966 $
( l,507,615)

30
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NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity in the City for the year ended Septembe r 30, 2019 is as foilows:

Bcginning
Balancc In crcascs Dccrcascs

Ending
Balancc

Govcrn mcntal Activitics:
Capital Asscts Not Bcing Dcprcciatcd:

Land
Constructi<;n in pr<;grcss

Total capital asscts not bcing dcprcciatcd

Capital asscts bcine dcprcciatcd and amortizcd:
Building and erounds
Improvcmcnts
Machincry/cquipmcn t

Intangiblc asscts

Total capital asscts bcing dcprcciatcd and amortizcd

Lcss accumulatcd dcprcciation and amortization:
Buildings
Improvcmcnts
Machincry/cquipmcn t

Intangiblc asscts

Totzrl accumul:rrcd dcprcciation and amortization

Total Capital Asscts Bcing Dcprcciatcd and
Amortizcd, Nct

Govcrnmcntal Activitics Capital Asscts, Nct

Busincss-typc Activitics:
Capit:rl Asscts Not Bcing Dcprcciatcd:

Land
C()nstructi()n in progrcss

Total capital asscts not bcing dcprcciatcd

Capiral asscts bcing dcprcciatcd and amortizcd:
Building and grounds
Improvcmcnts
Lzindfi ll ccll dcvclopmcnt
Machincry/cquipmcn t
Intangiblc asscts

Total capital asscts bcing dcprcciatcd and amortizcd

Lcss accumulatcd dcprccizrtion and amortization:
Builclings
Improvcmcnts
Landfi ll ccll dcvclopmcnt
Machin cry,/cquipmcnt
Intangiblc asscts

Total accumul:rtcd dcprcciation and amortization

Total Capital Asscts Bcing Dcprcciatcd and
Amortizcd, Nct

Busincss-typc Activitics Capital Asscts, Nct

$ 2,837,rgs $

473,+20 t+3,o35 (249,739)
2,837,r85

366,7 l6
$ $

$ 3,310,60s $ r43,o3s $ (249,739) $ 3.2 03,901

$ 15,860,860 $

62,963,524
14,16r,3++

1,354,28+

I6l ,695 $

523,089
1,664,885

6,861

$ 16,022,55s
63,486,61 7

(s94,026) t5,232,2O3
1,361,145

$ 94,340,016 $ 2,3s6,530 $ (594,026) $ 96.1 02,s20

$ (6,189,5s6) $

(39,90 1,992)

(D,,7 79,5+s)
(7 47 ,t +3)

(400,623) $

(1,559,s37)
(937,743)

(39,s73)

$ (6,5e0,l7e)
(41 ,461 ,s29)
(r2,t23,262)

(786,7 16)

59+,026

$ (58,6r8,236) $ (2,937,+76) $ 594,026 $ (60,961 ,686)

$ 3s,72 1,780 $ (580,946) $ $ 3s.140 ,43+

$ 39,032,385 $ (437,911) $ (249,739) fi 38,34+,735

$ 383,35 i $ $ $ 383,35 1

7,0000007

$ 390,35 I $ $ 390,3s I

fi 3,+s7,697 $

84,785,090
12,836,858
16,sos,7 t2

493,O54

$ $

(775,030)

3,+s7,697
84,785,090
12,836,858
t7,130,273

+93,O5+
1,399,591

$ l1B,07B,4ll $ 1,399,591 $ (775,030) $ I 18.702 o7,

$ (2,857,858) $

(57 ,1 86,7 7 7)

(7,2OO,433)

(13,9 I 7,650)
(227,220)

(l 14,598) $

(1"5O9,773)
(208,62s)

(1,161,409)
(56.805)

fi (2,972,456)
(s8,696,550)

(7,409,058)
(r4,3O4,O29)

(284,o25)
77 5,O30

$ (81.389.938) $ (3,0s1,210) $ 77s,030 $ (83,666,118)

$ 36,688,473 $ (1,6s1,619) $ $ 3s,036,854

3l
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

September 30, 2019

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONT.)

Assets under capital leases totaled $7,285,190 in govemmental funds and $11,100,697 in the business type funds.
Accumulated amortization on those assets at September 30, 2019 amounted to $4,601,412 and $8,483,205, respectively.
This equipment is being amortized over 3 to 20 years. The amount of the amortization for the year ended September 30,
2019 was fi7+3,362 and $1,068,795 in the governmental and business-type activities respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to the following functions:

Govcrnmcn tal Activitics:
Gcncral g()vcrnmcnt
Policc
Firc
Dcvclopmcnt scrviccs
S trc<:l

Hcalth
Community lacilitics
Parks and rccrcation
Public works

Busin css-typc Activitics:
Watcr
Wastc watcr
Wastc watcr trcatmcnt
Sanitation
Landfill
Airport

$ 396,631
179,989
3s2,62+

13,03 l
r,328,322

3,346
179,7+3
+36,204
47,582

$ 2,937,476

$ 9 18,1 r3
408,656
208,001
320,277
77 r,999
424 r64

$ 3,05 r,2 r0

NOTE T: LEASE COMMITMENTS

The City had telephone equipment under operating leases during the year. Rent expense amounted to $34, i 39 for the
ye ar ended September 30, 20 19. The minimum luture lease payments under these leases at September 30, 2019 are as

foilows:

Ycar Endins Scptcmbcr 30, Amount
2020
2021

$ 29,r+B
9,234

NOTE B: I,ANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE, COSTS

State and Federal laws and regulations require that the City of Brownwood place a final cover on its landfill when closed
and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure . In addition to
operating expenses related to current activities of the iandfill, an expense provision and related liability are being
recognized based on the future closure and postclosure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill
no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the
landfill use during the year.

The estimated liability lor landfill closure and postclosure care costs has a balance of $6,182,168 as of September 30, 20 l9
which is based on 28.49o/o usage (filled) of the overall landfill. It is estimated that an additional $i0,986,601 will be
recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses between the date ol the balance sheet and the date the landfill is

expected to be filled to capacity (2 ll0). The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and postclosure care,

$ 17,168,768, is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities and services require d to close, monitor
and maintain the landfill were acquired as of September 30, 2019. However, the actual cost of closure and postclosure
care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.
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NOTE B: I,ANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS (CONT.)

Based on the latest permit modification dated November 22, 1999 the City's financial assurance requirement is $ I 0,290,5 I B

and is being met by the government financial test specified in 30 TAC Chapter 37 .27 l.

NOTE 9: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations lor the year ended September 30, 2019:

Thc hllowinq is a summary of chanscs in lons-tcrm oblieations lor thc ycar cndcd Scptcmbcr 30, 2019:

Bcginning
Balancc Additions Rcductions

Ending
Balancc

Duc Within
Onc Ycar

Govcrnmcn tal Activit ics:

Bonds, Notcs and Lcascs Payablc:
Ccrtifi catcs o{' obligation
Gcncral oblisation bonds
T:rx notc payablc
Dircct borrowings:

Capital lcascs payablc

Bond prcmiums
Total Bonds, Notcs and Lcascs

Payablc

Compcnsatcd abscnccs
Total Govcrnmcn tal Activities

Busincss-typc Activitics:
Bonds, Notcs and Lcascs Payablc

Ccrtifi catcs ol obligation
Gcneral oblieation bonds
Tax notc payablc
Dircct borrowinss:

Capital lcascs payablc

Bond prcmiums
Total Bonds, Notcs and Lcascs

Payablc

Compcnsated abscnccs
Total Busincss-typc Activitics

Total Primary Govcrnmcn t

$ I 1,695,000 $
1,43s,000

63, I B0

$ (665,000) $
(265,000)

(30,780)

I 1,030,000 $

I,170,000
32,400

690,000

270,000
32,+OO

I,902,40 I t,4t I,233 (s5s,554) 2,7s8,080 74r 777

$ 15,095,581 $

83,862
r,+rt,233 $ (1,516,334) $

(5,9e0)
14,990,480 $

77,872
|,7 3+,r7 7

$ 1s,179,443

1,688,582 l.IJJ ,499 (1,008,46s)

$ rs,068,3s2 $

I,B l3,6 t 6

$ $ 1,73+,t77

r,167,421
$l $ r,133,499 $ (1,008,46s) $ 16,88 1 ,968 $ 2,901,s98

$ (8ss,000)
(50s,000)

(64,22o)

$ 12,400,000 $

1,585,000
13 I ,820

$ 1r,s4s,000 $

I,080,000
67,600

890,000
530,000

67,600

2,608,9s8 1,233,300 (8s4.206) 2,988,052 |,o4t,9+5
fi 16,72s,778 $

29,293
1,233,300 $ (2,278,426) $

(r r ,7 17)

I5,680,652 $

17,576
2,529,5+5

$ 16,7ss,071 $

224,O82

1,233,300 $

204,086

(2,290,143) $

( l 98,580)

1s,698,228 $

229,sBB

2,529,5+s

t5l,920
$ I6,979,ls3 $ r,437,386 $ (2,488,723) $ 1s,927,8l6 $ 2,681,465

fi 33,8+7,t78 $ 2.s 70,BBs$(3,497,188) $32,809,784$5,583,063

I-ong-tcrm obligations ftrr thc componcnt unit BMDD at Septcmbcr 30, 2019 arc as follows:

Compcnsatcd abscnccs $ 5,555 $ 7,463 $ (3,042) $ 9,976 $ 7,579

Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
equipment and facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge olthe general taxing powers
for the payment of debt obligations of the City. General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation require the City
to set aside each year a portion ol the taxes levied in a lund to pay interest and principal at maturity. The City is in
compliance with this requirement. Combination tax and revenue bonds are payable lrom either ad valorem taxes levied,
with the limits prescribed by laws, or payable from and secured by the surplus net revenues of the City's water and sewer

oo
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMEI\TS (CONT.)

September 30, 2019

NOTE 9: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT.)

Govemmental Activities (cont.)

system as provided in the ordinances authorizing their issuance. Tax notes are used to fund specific projects and are
generally repaid from tax revenues over shorter periods of time.

A summary of the bonds follows:

Datc ol Issuc

Original
Amount

Maturity
Date

Amount
Ouislanding
9/30/2019

$ B, l85,000
2,845,000

1 ,I 70,000

$ r 2,200,000

In tcrcst
Ratc

Combination tax and rcvenuc
certifi cates ol obligation:

Scrics 201 2

Scrics 2016
Gcncral obligation rcfi-rnding bonds,

Scries 20 I 5

6/19/20t2
7 /|/2016

IO/ 15 /20t5

$ r0,7s0,0o0
3,0s0,000

2.O to 4.125o/o

3.2 Lo 4.5o/o

3/ 15/2032
3/ ts/2031

2,250,000 O.45 t<> 2.2o/o 3/ 15/2026

The following represents the future maturities on these bonds:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2032

Total

A summary of the tax note follows:

Datc of Issuc

960,000 $

985,000
860,000
890,000
925,000

4,740,OO0

2,840,000

432,s99 $

40 r,036
372,036
342,976
3ll,l30

I,O44,638
166,826

1,392,399

1,386,036
1,232,036
r,232,976
I ,236,1 30
5,784,638
3,006,826

Principal In tcrcst Total
$

$1 $ 3,071,041 $ 15,27r,o41

Original
Amount

Intc rcst
Ratc

Maturity
Datc

Amorrnl
Outstanding
9/30/20t9

Tax Notc, Taxablc Scrics 2013
Govcrnmcntal portion
Busincss-typc portion

9/ 1/2013
9/ | /20t3

194,400
405,600

4.4 l<> 4.7o/o

4.4 lo 4.7o/o

9/ 15/2020
9/ ls/2020

In tcrcst

$ 32,400
67,600

$ 100,000

Total

$

$ 600,000

The following represents the future maturities on the governmental portion of this tax note

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal
$ 32,400 $ $2020

3+

4,461 36,861
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NOTE 9: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT.)

Governmental Activities (cont.)

2020
202r
2022
2023
2024
Total

Governmental activities are obligated under a number of long-term capital leases. Capital leases amounting to
$2,0 12,208 at September 30, 2019 are secured by the underlying equipment on the lease. The following represents
the future maturities on all governmental activity capital leases:

Ycar Endine Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intcrest Total
s 7 +r ,777 S

71+,926
529,657

+3+,478
337,2+2

l0B,l66 s

80,143

54,23+
32,s l6

I,1 92

849,9+3

795,069
583,B9l
+66,994

3+6,434
s 2,7s8,080 s 284,251 _l____?!1?i!_l_

Business-type activities

The City makes use of general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation as well as tax notes in the business-t)?e
activities.

A summary olthe bonds follows:

Amonnt
Original Inrcrcst Maturity Outstanding

Datc of Issuc Amount Ratc Datc 9/30/2019
Combination tax and rcvcnuc

ccrtificatcs of obligation:
Scrics 2004

Scrics 2012,A.

Scrics 2013
Scrics 2015

Gcncral obligation rcfunding bonds,

Scrics 2010

6,335,000
3,440,000

3,870,000
4,81s,000

.3 to 3.35%
1.96 to 4.64%

3.lB%
2.95o/o

3/ 15/2022
3 / 15 /20+4
3/ t 5/2029
9/30/2035

2,360,000
3,105,000
1,955,000

4,1 25,000

S3/ Ls/200+
12/ | /2012
r0/B/2013

r0 / 15 /2015

S

3 / 15 /2010

The following represents the future maturities on these bonds:

Ycar Endins Scptcmber 30,

2020

2021

2022
2023

2024

2025-2029
2030-2034

2035-2039

20+0-2044
T'otal

5,050,000 2.0 Lo 4.00/0 3/15/202t

Principerl Intcrcst

1,080,000

_q____u'6gu99_

Total
$ 1,420,000 $

1,470,000

950,000

985,000
l,01s,000
2,785,000

2,020,000
1,065,000

915,000

413,099

363,439

323,0 r 9

292,r83
260,0 I B

1,077 ,+s7
686,lBB
306,705
l 10,04 l

$ 1,833,099

1.833,439

I,273,0t9
t,277,tB3
l ,275,0 l B

3,862,457

2,706, i BB

t,37 I ,705
I,025,041

$ 16,457,149

35
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

TO BASIC ANCIAL STATE.MENTS NT

September 30,2019

NOTE 9: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT.)

Business-type activities (cont.)

A summary of the tax note is presented above. The following represents the future maturities on the business-type portion
of this tax note:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intcrcst Total
2020 S 67,600 s 3,177 S 70,777

Business-type activities are obligated under a number of long-term capital ieases. Capital leases amounting to $2,865,594
at September 30, 2019 are secured by the underlying equipment on the lease. The following represents the future
maturities on all business-type activity capital leases:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intcrcst Total
2020
2021

2022
2023

2024
Total

83,533 S

s 1,820

28,073
t3,778
2,075

|,t25,478
987,021

504,619
++B,BB2

101,331

S I ,041 ,945 S

935,201

476,546
+35,t04

99,256
s 2,988,052 S 179,279 S 3,167,33r

NOTE IO: DEFINED BENE,FIT PENSION PI-AN

The City ol Brownwood participates in three pension plans. Two are administered by Texas Municipal Retirement
System (TMRS), Plan 10190 City and 30190 Health Department, and one is administered by Brownwood Firefighter's
Relief and Retirement Fund.

TMRS Plan Descriptions

The City of Brownwood participates as two of BB7 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State
of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title B, Texas Government Code (the TMRS
Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act
places the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the
Govemor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of
Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 40 l(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees olthe city are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the goveming body of the
city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retireme nt, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and the city-financed
monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit
in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum
Distribution in an amount equal to 12,24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75o/o of the member's deposits
and interest.

Plan provisions for the City include an employee deposit rate of 7o/o, a matching ratio (city to employee) of 2 to I and five
years of participation for vesting. Employees with five years of continuous service are eligible to retire at age 60. Employees
may retire at any age after 20 years of continuous service.
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At the Decembe r 3 I , 20 I B valuation and measurement date, the lollowing employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Plan 10190 City
Plan 30190 Health Department

Inactive employees entitied to but not yet receiving benefits
Plan 10190 City
Plan 30190 Health Department

Active employees
Plan 10190 City
Plan 30190 Health Department

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5o/o, 60/o, or 7o/o of employee gross earnings, and the city
matching percentages are either 10070, 1500/o, or 200o/o, both as adopted by the governing body of the city. Under the
state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate lor each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the
cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to hnance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Brownwood were required to contributeTo/o of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal
year. The contribution rates for the City were as follows:

Calcndar Ycar
20lB 2019

t+o
t2

91

2

227
ll

Plan I0190 City
Plan 30190 Hcalth Dcpartmcnt

13.51%
IO.67o/o

13.I3o/o

9.95o/o

The ciry's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2018, for PIan 10190 City and PIan 30 190 Health
Department were $1,331,684 and $44,396, respectively, and were equal to or in excess olthe required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

The city's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 3 I , 20 I B, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL)
used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuaial assumptions. The Total Pension Liability in the December 3 I, 20 I B actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5o/o per year

Overall payroll growth 3.070 per year

Investment Rate olReturn 6.75o/o, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were
based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with maie rates
multiplied by 109% and lemale rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scaie BB
to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy
Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and lemale rates multiplied by 103%
with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition, a 370 minimum mortality rate is applied to re{lect the
impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a lully senerational basis by scale BB
to account lor future mortality improvements subiect to the 304 floor.
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Net Pension Liability (cont.)

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience oITMRS over the
four year period from December 3i, 2010 to December 31,201+. They were adopted in 20 15 and first used in the
December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity
Purchase Rate (APR$ are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 201i and dated
December 31, 2013. In conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the System adopted
the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change to the amortization policy. Plan assets are managed
on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production olincome, in order to satisfy
the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

'fhe long-term expected rate of return on pension pian investments was determined using a building-block method in which
best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected luture real rates olretum by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. In determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative
asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (l) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for
time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation
and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 20i9 are summarized in the lollowing table:

Asset Class Tarset Allocation Long-Term Expected Reai Rate of Return (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17 .5o/o 4.30o/o

International Equity 17 .5o/o 6.10%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.00%

Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0o/o 3.390h
Real Return 10.0% 3.7\o/n

Real Estate 10.0% 4.44o/o

Absolute Return 10.0% 3.560/o

Private trquity 5.0To 7 .7 5o/o

Total r00.00%

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.750/o. The projection olcash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in
statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments ol current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan inve stments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension
Liability.
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NOTE l0: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PI-AN (CONT.)

Net Pension Liability (cont.)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Plan i0190 City
Balancc 12/31 /2017
Changcs lor thc ycar:

Scrvicc cost
In tcrcst
Diffcrcncc bclwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcricncc
Con tributions-cmploycr
C on tribution s-cmploycc
Nct invcstmcnt incomc
Bcncfit paymcnts, including rclunds of employcc
contributions

Administrativc cxpcnsc
Othcr chanscs

Nct changcs
Balancc 12/31/2018

Plan 30190 Hcalth Dcpartmcnt
Balancc 12/31/2017
Changcs ftrr thc ycar:

Scrvicc cost
In tcrcst
Diflcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcriencc
Con tributions-cmploycr
Con tributions-cmploycc
Nct invcstmcnt income
Bcncfit paymcnts, including rclunds of cmploycc
contributions

Administrativc cxpcnsc
Othcr changcs

Nct changcs
Balancc 12/31, /2OlB

Incrcasc (Dccrcasc)

Total Pcnsion Plan Fiduciary Nct Pcnsion
Liability (a)-(b)Liabilirv (a) Nct Position (b)

$ 50,390,342 $ 4s,436,3ls $ +,9s4,o27

$ l,s20,893 $

3,365,563
(7s,4o2)

(2,581 ,187)

1,322,2t7
685,087

(1,360,949)

$ 1,520,893

3,36s,563
(7e,+o2)

(t,322,217)
(68s,087)

I,360,949

(2,s81,lB7)
(26,30+)

(1,37+)
26,304

t,37+
ff 2,22s,867 $ (1,962,s10) $ +,r8a377
$ s2,6 16,209 $ 43,473,80s $ 9,1+2,+O+

fi r ,387 ,7 34 fi 1 ,34s ,45+ $ +2,280

$ 66,235 $

92,725
46,48+

+o15 I 5

30,423
(40, 102)

66,23s
92,72s
46,+84

(+6,373)
(30,+23)
40,to2

$

(s4,293) (e4,2e3)
(77s)

(40)

(sB,4l8) $ 169,s69

$ i,49B,B8s $ 1,287,036 $ 2 i 1,849

779
40

$ llt lsl $

SmsiiuiE of the net pmsion liabili\t to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net pension liability of the City,
calculated using the discount rate of 6.7 5o/o, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calcuiated
using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (5.750lo) or l-percentage-point higher (7.75Vo) than the current rate:

City's Net Pension Liability
loA Decrease in Discount

Rate (5.75%) Discount Rate (6.75%)
170 Increase in Discount

Rate (7.75%)
Plan 10190 City $ 16.549.247 $9.142.404 $3,096,078
Plan 30 190 Health Department $4 l 5,208 $2 I I,849 fi45,737

Pmsion Plan Fiduciary Net Poinon. Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a
separately-issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.hnrsclm.
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Net Pension Liability (cont.)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows olResources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 20 19, the City recognized pension expense of $1,757,8 18. At September 30, 2019, the
City reported delerred outflows ol resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Dcficrrcd Dclcrrcd
Outflows of Inflows of
Rcsourccs Rcsourccs

Plan 10190 City
Diflcrcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cconomic cxpcricncc
Changcs in actuarial assumptions
Diffcrcncc bctwccn projcctcd :rnd actual invcstmcnt carninss
Contributions subscqucnt to thc mcasurcmcnt datc
Total

Plan 30I90 Hcalth Dcpartmcnt
Di[Icrcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cconomic cxpcricncc
Changcs in acl.uarial assumptions
Diffcrcncc bctwccn projcctcd and actual invcstmcnt carninqs
Contributions subscqucnt to thc measurcmcnt datc
Total

$ $ 285,610
4,173

2,346,+31
l,009,8s2

$ 3,360,456 $ 285,610

$ fi 7,172
r,+49

70,7+9
33,385

$ 105,s83 $ 1727

$1,0+3,237 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction olthe net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2019.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Plan 10190 Plan 30190
City Hcalth Dcpt.

Nct Dclcrrcd Outflows (Inflows) olRcsourccs
Plan ycar 2019

2020
202r
2022

Total

$

$ 2,064,994 $ 65,026

Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund Plan Description

The City contributes to the retirement plan lor hrefighters in the Brownwood Fire Department known as the
Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund (the Fund). The Fund is a single employer, contributory,
defined benefit plan.

The bene fit provisions of the Fund are authorized by the Texas Local Fire Fighters' Retirement Act (TLFFRA). TLFFRA
provides the authority and procedure to amend benefit provisions. The plan is administered by the Board olTrustees of
the Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund. The City does not have access to nor can it utilize assets within
the retirement plan trust. The Fund issues a stand-alone report pursuant to GASB Statement No. 67, which may be
obtained by writing the Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund at P. O. Box 1389, Brownwood, Texas
7680+. See that report for ali information about the plan fiduciary net position.

672,449 $

22t,874
2Bs,4B0
BB5, I 87

l 7,08l
5,478

r4,243
28,TB4
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Benefits Provided

Firefighters in the Brownwood Fire Department are covered by the Brownwood Firefighter's Relieland Retirement Fund
which provides service retirement, death, disability, and withdrawal benefits. These benefits fully vest alter 20 years of
credited service. Firefighters may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service. A vested benefit deferred to age 50 is provided
for firefighters who terminate employment before age 50 with at least 20 years of service. The present plan e{Iective
October I, 2008 provides a monthly normal service retirement benefit, payable in aJoint and Two-Thirds to Spouse form
olannuity, equal to 50% of Highest 60-Month Average Salary plus $54.50 per month lor each year of service in excess of
20.

A retiring firefighter who is at least age 52 with at least 20 years of service has the option to elect the Retroactive Deferred
Retirement Option Plan (RETRO DROP) which will provide a lump sum benefit and a reduced monthly benefit. The
reduced monthly benefit is based on the service and Highest 60-Month Average Salary as if he had terminated
employ.rnent on his selected RtrTRO DROP benefit calculation date, which is no earlier than the later of the date he

meets the age 52 and 20 years of service requirements and the date two years prior to the date he actually retires. Upon
retirement, the member will receive, in addition to his monthly retirement beneht, a lump sum equal to the sum of (l) the
amount of monthly contributions the member has made to the Fund after the RETRO DROP benefit calculation date
plus (2) the total of the monthly retirement benefits the member would have received between the RtrTRO DROP benefit
calculation date and the date he retired under the plan. There are no account balances. The lump sum is calculated at
the time of retirement and distributed as soon as administratively possible.

There is no provision for automatic postretirement benefit increases. The Fund has the authority to provide, and has

periodically in the past provided, ad hoc postretirement benefit increases.

Members Covered by the Fund

At the December 3I , 2017 actuarial valuation, the following numbers of members were covered by the Fund:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 26

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0

Active employees 33

Policy

The contribution provisions of the Fund are authorized by TLFFRA. TLFFRA provides the authority and procedure to
change the amount of contributions determined as a percentage of pay by each firefighter and a percentage of payroll by
the City.

The funding policy of the Brownwood Firefighter's Relieland Retirement Fund requires contributions equal to B7o of pay
by the firefighters, the rate elected by the firefighters according to TLFFRA. The City currently contributes 20% of payroll
based on a contract between the City and the Fund. The City contributed 20% of payroll through September 30, 2018
based on a contract between the City and the Fund and began contributing 2lo/o of payroll in October 201B. The City
contribution rate had been 200/o since 2009. The December 31,2017 actuarial valuation includes the assumption that the
City contribution rate wili be 20o/o over the unfunded liability amortization period. The costs of administering the plan
are paid lrom the Fund assets.

Ultimately, the funding policy also depends upon the total return ol the Fund's assets, which varies from year to year.
Investment policy decisions are established and maintained by the board of trustees. The board selects and employs
investment managers with the advice of their investment consultant who is completely independent of the investment
managers. For the year ending December 3 I , 20 i B, the money-weighted rate of return on pension pian inve stments was
-5.51%. This measurement of the investment perlormance is net of investment-related expenses, reflecting the eflect of
the timing olthe contributions received and the benefits paid during the year.

41



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

September 30, 2019

NOTE l0: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PI-AN (CONT.)

Funding Policy (cont.)

While the contribution requirements are not actuarially determined, state law requires that each change in plan benefits
adopted by the Fund must first be approved by an eligible actuary, certifying that the contribution commitment by the
firefighters and the assumed city contribution rate together provide an adequate contribution arrangement. Using the
entry age actuarial cost method, the plan's normal cost contribution rate is determined as a percentage of payroll. T'he
excess of the total contribution rate over the normal cost contribution rate is used to amortize the plan's unlunded actuarial
accrued liability flJAAL).The number of years needed to amortize the plan's UAAL is actuarially determined using an
open, level percentage olpayroll method.

Net Pension Liability

The City of Brownwood's net pension liability was measured as December 31, 2018, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the ne t pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 3 I , 20 I 7 and rolled lorward
to December 3 l, 20 I B.

'Iotal pcnsion liability
Plan liciuciary nct position
City's nct pcnsir>n liability

Inflation

Salary increases

Investment rate olreturn

$

3.25o/o

3.25o/o, pius promotion, step and longevity increases that vary by service

7.25o/o, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

9,57 |,33+
3,834,051

fi 5,737,283

Plan fiduciary nct p()sition as a pcrccntagc of thc total pe nsion liability 40.Iok

Actuanal assurnptions. The total pension liability in the December 3 l, 20 I 7 actuarial valuation was determined using the
lollowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables for males and lor females (sex distinct)
projected to 2024 by scale AA.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is reviewed for each biennial actuarial valuation and
was determined using a building-block method in which expected future net real rates of re turn (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These components are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future net real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage (currently resulting in 4.0o/o) and by adding expected inflation (3.25"/o). The target allocation
and expected arithmetic net real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Tarset Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate o[Retum (Arithmetic)
Large Cap Domestic
Equity

29Yo 5.3o/o

Small/mid Cap Domestic
Equity

llo/o 5.Bo/o

International Developed
Equity

20o/o 5.8%

Emersins Markets Equity 50/o 7 .3o/o

Fixed Income 350h 0.8%
Cash 0o/o 0.0%

Total 100%
Weiehted Averase 4.0o/o
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Net Pension Liability (cont.)
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .25o/o. No projection of cash flows was
used to determine the discount rate because the December 31,2017 actuarial valuation showed that expected
contributions would pay the normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) in 39 years.
Because of the 39-year amoftlzation period of the UAAL, the pension plan's fiduciary net position is expected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.250lo was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments as

the discount rate to determine the total pension liability.

SensitiaiE of the net pmsion linbiliry tu changes in the discount rate. The lollowing presents the net pension iiability ol the City,
calculated using the discount rate of 7 .25o/o, compare d to what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or l-percentage-point higher (8.25o/o) than the current rate:

lolo Decrease in Discount
Rate (6.25%) Discount Rate (7.25%)

l7o Increase in Discount
Rate (8.25%)

City's Net Pension Liability $6,9s5,366 $s,737,283 $4,7 1 7,6 l6

Pension Pkn Fiduciaryt Net Posiion. The plan fiduciary net position is the same as reported by the Fund. Detailed information
about the plan fiduciary net position is available in the Fund's separately issued audited financial statements, which are
reported using the economic resources management focus and the accrual basis ol accounting in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recorded when earned, and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Investments are
reported at lair value, the price that would be recognized to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Incrcasc (Dccrcasc)

Total Pcnsion
Liabiliry (a)

Plan Fiduciary
Nct Position (b)

Nct Pcnsion
Liability (a)-(b)

$ 2s6,65 I

667,406
(386,967)

( r s2,eB2)

226,6t5
(603,337)

3+,036

$ 9,571,334 $ 3.834,0s l $ 5,737,283

Amounts as o{'Scptcmbcr 30, 20lB
Changcs lor thc ycar:

Scrvicc cost
In tcrcst
Con tribution s-cmploycr
C on t ributions-cm ploycc
Nct invcstmcnt incomc
Bcncfit paymcnts
Admin istrativc cxpcnsc

Nct changcs
Amounts as of Scptcmbcr 30, 2019

$ 9,2s0,614 $ 4,1s8,090 $ 5,092,s24

256,65 t $

667,406
$

386,967
t52,982

(226,61s)

(603,337)
(34.036)

fi 32O,72O $ (324,039) $ 644,759

Mcasurcmcnts ftrr thc fiscal ycar cnclcd Scptcmbcr 30, 20lB wcrc takcn as olDcccmbcr 31,2O17.
Mcasurcmcnts lor thc fiscal ycar cndcd Scptcmbcr 30, 2019 wcrc takcn as of Dcccmbcr 31, 2018.
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Di{Icrcncc bctwccn projcctcd and actual invcstmcnt earninss on
pcnsion plan invcstmcnts

Diflcrcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcricncc
Changcs of assumptions
Contributions subscqucnt to thc mcasurcmcnt datc

Total

Pension ExBense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows olResources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 20 19, the City's GASB 68 pension expense of $716,987. Amounts recognized in the
fiscal year represent changes between the current and prior measurement dates.

Components of Pension Expense for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 20 l9:

Scrvicc cost
In tcrcst
Fircfi ghtcr's contributions
Pr<ljcctcd carninss on pcnsion plzrn invcstmcnts
Amortization oldiffcrcnccs bctwccn projcctcd and actual carnings on plan invcstmcnts
Amortization olchangcs olassumptions
Amortization oldiflercnccs bctwccn cxpected an actual cxpcricncc
Pcnsion plan administrativc cxpcnscs

Total pcnsion cxpcnsc $ 716,987

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Delerred Inflows of Resources to be Recognized in Pension Expense in Future Years

$ 256,651
667,406
(r52,s82)
(297,e3o)

17 5,067
30,823

3,916
34,036

Dclcrrcd
Outflows of
Rcsourccs

Dclcrrcd
Inflows of
Rcsourr:es

$ 356,8l4 $
5 1,406

i s0,387
309, I 04

20,754

$ 867 7tI $ 20,754

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

Ycar cndcd Scptcmbcr 30

Nct olDclcrrcd
Outflows Minus
Dclcrrcd Inflow,

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

The rcaltcr
Total

g 17 r ,267
r02,173
82,682

138,55 I

28,977
r+,203

$ 537,8s3

Defmed Oufu* of Ruources to Be Recognipd Next Tear. The total of the contributions by the City to the Fund contributed
subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability, December 3 I , 20 I B through September 30, 20 l9 is a
deferred outflow of resources that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability lor the year ending
September 30, 2020. This amount is $309,104.
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September 30,2019

NOTE I I: INTtrRNAL BALANCE,S AND INTERFUND TRANSFE,RS

Internal balances at September 30, 20 l9 amount to $2 1,925 and represent short term advances between funds.

Transfers to./from other funds during the year ended September 30, 20 I 9 consist ol the following:

From Utility Fund to the General Fund to supplement the functions of that fund $ 600,000

From Utility Fund to the Health Fund to supplement the lunctions of that fund $ 42,000

From Sanitation Fund to the General Fund to supplement the functions of that lund $ 1,040,000

NOTE 12: COMMITMENTS

Brownwood Municipal Development District (BMDD) assumed several project financial obligations from
Brownwood Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) that have not yet been fully funded as lollows:

e BEDC approved a five-year incentive up to $300,000 to 3M Company to support a product line. At
September 30,2019 there is $180,000 remaining to be paid on this incentive.

. BEDC approved a $300,000 incentive to Leeco Energy & Investments for infrastructure improvements to
be paid as construction is completed. At September 30, 2019 there is $90,000 remaining to be paid on this
incentive.

BMDD has a building improvement incentive program that provides matching funds of up to $20,000 upon
completion of an approved project. Five projects totaling $69,767 were approved and not yet funded at September
30,2019.

During the prior year, BMDD approved a financial incentive to Hendricks Health System lor construction of a
medical o{fice building in the amount of $350,000 payable over five years. At September 30, 2019, there is $250,000
remainingtobepaidonthisincentive. AfinancialincentivewasalsoapprovedlorStarrSalesofupto$10,775to
lund one-halfthe cost of water line relocation. This incentive was not yet lunded at September 30, 2019.

During the current year, BMDD approved two financial incentives that were not yet funded at September 30, 2019:
r Steve Browder in the amount of $97,975 for Duckhorn Town Ranch Phase III
r JeffTucker in the amount of $2,694 for a water tap

The above project financial obligations total $701,21I and are assigned fund balance on the governmental fund
balance sheet.

On August 22,2019, BMDD committed to a lease of office space lor $15,600 annually for five years with the
intention of subieasing the property as a financial incentive.

The City has an agreement with Brown County to share the costs of the Joint Law Enforcement Center. Under this
agreement the City pays 29o/o of the annual debt service cost based on square footage. The City also agreed to pay a
percentage of additional construction expenses over the life of the bonds, a percentage of the annual bond administration
costs, a percentage ofthe utilities cost and a percentage ofthe insurance costs.

The City is committed to a number of construction projects at September 30, 2019 including City Hall improvements,
Depot improvements, airport improvements, street improvements and park improvements. Totai cost of these projects
is approximately $ 1,489,800 with remaining costs of approximately $ l,l 16,000 at September 30, 20 19.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City of Brownwood is the primary guarantor for payment of principal and interest on Revenue Bonds issued by
Brown County Water Improvement District # I with an approved original baiance of $20,490,000. At September 30,
20 19 the unpaid balance was $10,495,000. Principal payments on the bonds began February l, 2009 and the final
payment is due Febru ary 1 , 2028. Payments are made monthly as a debt service charge on the statement to the Ciry for
water purchases. The payments are shared by charges added to the statements of all ol the contracting parties for the
purchase of treated water lrom Brown County Wate r Improvement District # I .

NOf'E r3:
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NOTE 14

NOTE 15: UTILITY

NOTE 16: E,LECTED OFFICIALS

Stephen Haynes
Walker Willey
H.D.Jones
Draco Miller
Larry Mathis
Ed McMillian

Emily Crawford
William P. Chesser
Christi Wynn
Lee Haney

CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATE,MENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2019

RISK MANAGEME,NT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thelt ofl, damage to, and destruction. ol assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City's general liability, professional liabiiity, and worker's
compensation insurance coverage is provided through the purchase of commercial insurance. The City retains risk on
only a small deductible amount, except on non-financed vehicles on which no collision insurance is carried. There were
no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year and there were no settlements exceeding insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years. The City has designated fi23,282 of net position to cover any potential losses on the
non-covered vehicles. The City employee health care is provided by commercial insurance with no risk retained by the
City. The management of the City has not been notified and is not aware olany signihcant claims against the City not
covered by insurance.

The Utility Department was serving the following number of customers:

9/30/ t9
Water Department
Sewer Department
Sanitation Department

9/30/ 1B

7,+01
6,895
7,0+5

7,+27
6,920
7,089

NOTE 17: APPOINTED OFFICIALS AND FIDELITY BONDS

Mayor
Councilman
Councilman
Councilman
Councilman
Councilman

City Manager
City Attorney
City Secretary
Municipal CourtJudge

City employees are covered by a blanket fidelity bond in the amount of $100,000

NOTE 18: INSURANCE COVERAGE - BUILDINGS AND CONTENTS

A summary of the buildings and contents insurance coverage follows:

Insurer: Texas Municipal League
Expiration date: October i through September 30

Coverage: Buildings $ 57,607,736
Contents 5,393,893

Risk covered: Fire, lightning, extended coverage including
Replacement cost endorsement.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

ONT

September 30,2019

NOTE 19: TRANSACTIONS WITH COMPONENT UNITS

During the current fiscal year, BEDC was terminated and the escrow account of $50,000 was contributed to the City of
Brownwood.

The BMDD entered into a 380 agreement with the City of Brownwood to contribute $500,000 to the City for economic
development purposes. BMDD also contributed land held for development valued at $350,000 back to the City under
a reversionary provision.

All of the above transactions are included in Community Development operating grants and contributions on the
Statement of Activities.

NOTtr 20: SUBSEqUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, the City entered into a contract with Enterprise Fleet Management to acquire i 7 vehicles
through a capital lease program. These include 7 SUV's and l0 pickups for the Police, Utility, Sanitation, Landfill, Fleet
Services, Street and Development Services departments. The total cost is $449,334 with varying monthly payments that
will amortize the total debt over five years.

The City also entered into a 380 agreement with VRC Technologies, Inc. to provide an economic development incentive
for construction of an expansion project. The incentive is in the form of a $ 185,000 five year loan that can be repaid
through new job creation credits.

47



REO-UIRBD SUPPLE MENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTE,M PI-AN I O I90 CITY

Last Five Plan Years

20t+ 20 l5

AND RE,I-{TE,I-)

20 I6 20t7 20 1B

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY:
Sr:ruir:r: r:ost

Intcrcst ftrn total pcnsion liability)
Changcs in bcncfit tcrms including

substantially aut( )mal ic sl atus
Diffcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and zrctuzrl

cxpcricncc
Changc in assumptions
Bcncfit paymcnts, including rcfunds of

cmploycc contributions
Nct Changc in Total Pcnsion Liability

Tot:rl Pcnsion Lizr.bility - Bcginning
Total Pcnsion Liability - Ending (a)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION:
Contributions - cmploycr
Contributions - cmploycc
Nct invcstmcnt ir"rc<>mc

Bcncfit pa).,rncnts, including rcfunds of'
cmploycc contributions

Administrativc cxpcrrsc
Othcr
Nct Changc in Plan Fiduciary Nct Position

Plzrn Fiduciary Nct Position - Bcginning
Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Ending (b)

$ r,27 t,262 $

2,978,273

(993,709)

l,37 r,l5l $

3,072,001

(B I 1,345)

r 55,985

i,469,768 $

3,082,792
1,508,507 $

3,22+,688
1,520,893
J, J OJ,JO J

(282,788) (232,661) (7s,+02)

0 700) (1,987,889) (2,1 1s,766) (2,2s8.196) (2,s8 r , 187)

$ I,310,126 $

+2,883,969
l,799,903 $

++,19+,o95
2, I 54,006

4s,993,998
$ 2,242,338 $ 2,225,867

50,390,34248.1 +B,OO+

$ 44,194,095 $ 4s,993,998 $ 48,148,004 $s0 3+2 $ s2,616,209

$ 1,276,6t2 $

60 1,366

2,050,2t3

( l ,94s,700)
(2r,+os)

(1,760)

1,315,768 $

625,28r
55,7 7 +

(l,987,889)
(33,971)

(r,67e)

I ,3 14,906 $

6s6,984
2,5s2,844

(2,1 1s,766)
(2B,B2e)

( r,J3J)

1,333,369 $

677,329
5,564,41 5

(2,258, 1e6)

(2B,B3B)
(1.+62)

r,322,2t7
685,087

(r ,360,949)

(2,581,187)
(26,304)

(r ,37 +)

$ 1,959,326 $

35,838,s02
(26,7 16) $

37,797,B2B 112 40.1

( 1 ,962,s 10)

45,+36,315
2,378,s86 $ 5,286,617 $

37 77r 49,698
$ 37,797,828 $ 37 771 ll2 $ 40,149,698 $45 3i5 $ 43,473,80s

NETPENSIONLIABILITY-ENDING(")-(b) $ 6,396,267 $ 8,222,886 $ 7,998,306 $ +,95+,027 fi 9)42ft0+

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL PENSION
LIABILITY 85.530/0 82.l2o/" 83.39% 90.170/o

COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

NET PENSION LIAISILITY AS A
PERCE,NTAGE OF COVERE,D
EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

NO'TES TO SCFIEDI,TLE:
A full tcn ycar schcdulc will bc prcscntcd as it bccomcs availablc

$ 8,590,941 $ 8,932,582 $ 9,385,489 $ 9,67 6,122 $

7 +.+so/u 92.O1o/n 85.22ol' 5L2Oo/o

82.62%o

9,786,957

93.4lu/o

+B



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

TE,XAS MUNICIPAL RE,TIREMENT SYSTE,M PI-AN 30 I9O HEALTH DEPARTMENT
SCHE.DI]I,E, OF CHANGE,S II\ NF,T ON LIABILITY AND REI-ATED RATIOS

Last Five Plan Years

20t4 20 l5 20 16 20t7 201B

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY:
Scrvicc cost
Intcrcst (on total pcnsion liability)
Changcs in bcncfit tcrms includins

subst antially aut()matic sl irl us

Diflcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual
cxpcricncc

Changc in assumptions
Bcncfit pa).rncnts, including rcfunds of

cmploycc contributions
Total Pcnsion Liability - Bcginning
Total Pcnsion Liability - Ending (a)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION:
Contributions - cmployer
C ontributions - cmploycc
Nct invcstrncnt incomc
Bcncfit pzrymcnts, including rclunds of

cmploycc contributions
Administrativc cxpcnsc
Othcr
Nct Changc in Plan Fiduciary Nct Position

Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Bcginning
Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Ending (b)

59,025 $

80,1 rB

62,460 $
B+,570

$ 6s,s62 $

88,546
68,3 78 $

9O,B7B

66,235
92,725

46,4848,0s0

(65.871)

16,940

27,809
( 1 04,759)

(+8,925)

(74,592)

(48,929)

(69,49s) (94,293)

$ B 1,322 $ 87,020 $

t,229,291
30,591

1,316,31I
$ 40,832 $ i l1,15l

I,387 ,73+t47 969 1.346,902
$ 1,229,291 $ 1,316,311 $ 1,3+6,902 $ l.387 ,734 $ l,49B,BB5

$ 3r,+83 $

27,582
62,35r

(65,871)

(651)

(s4)

36,407 $

29,+62
1,689

+0,122 $

30,035
7 +,773

46,376 $

3r,32s
r62,r22

46,373
30,+23

(40,102)

( 1 04,7 59)

(i,029)
(s0)

(B4s)
(46)

(7+,592) (69,495)
(B4s)

(43)

(94,293)
(77s)

(40)

$ s4,840 $ (38,280) $
I,t++,8+7

69,++7 $

l, 106,567
169,440 $

1,176,0r+
(sB,4l B)

1,3+5,+54007

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL PENSION
LIABILITY

COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROI,L

NET PENSION LIABILITY AS A
PERCENTAGE OF COVERED
EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

NOTES "fO SCHEDULE:
A full tcn ycar schcdulc will bc prcscntcd as it bccomcs ervailablc

$ 394,031 $ 420,889 $ 429,068 $ 447,500 $ 434,613

44,8+7 $ 1,106,s67 $ 1,176,014 $ r,3+5,45+ $ 1,287,036

93.13'/o 84.O7'/o 87.sloh 96.9s% oR otol

2l .43ol' 49.83u/o 39.830k 9.45o/o +8.7+o/o

$ 1.1

NETPENSIONLIABILITY-ENDING(a)-(b)$ 84,444 $ 209,74+ $ I70,BBB $ +2,280 $ 2i1,84.9

+9



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

BROWNWOOD FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF AND RETIREMEI{T FUND
ES IN NE,T

Last Five Plan Years

201+ 20l s 201 6 20t7 201B

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY:
Scr-vicc cost

Intcrcst (on total pcnsion liabilitl
Changes in bcncfit tcrms
Diffcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual

cxpcricncc
Changc of assumptions
Bcncfit palrncnts, includinq rcfunds of
cmploycc contributions
Nct Changc in Total Pcnsion Liability

Total Pcnsion Liability - Bceinnine
Total Pcnsion Liability - Ending (a)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION:
Contributions - cmploycr
Contributions - cmploycc
Nct invcstmcnt incornc
Bcncfit payrncnts, including rcfunds of

cmploycc contributions
Administrativc expcnsc
Othcr
Nct Changc in Plan Fiduciary Nct Position

Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Bceinning
Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Ending (b)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL PE,NSION
LIABILITY

COVERED EMPLOYtrE PAYROI,L

$ 2r t ,640 $

56t,B++

(486.325)

2 19,098 $

586,+87

(+2,5+2)

87,5+1

229,505 $

6tt,7 +9

237,308 $
6+0,267

70,r32
1 46,9 l0

256,6s 1

667,+06

(418.41 r) (409,4s6) (st7 ,907) (603,337)

$ 287,159 $

7 ,s22,77 +
+32,173 $

7 809 933
+3r,798 $

8,2+2,r06
576,710 $

8,673,90+
320,720

9,250,614
$ 7,809,933 $ 8,2+2.106 $ 8.673.904 $ 9,2s0,614 $ 9,571,334

$ 323,97 s $

129,58I
62,582

(486,325)
(r2,+r+)

3+O,O92 $

136,036
(85,706)

(418,411)
(l 8,346)

355,382 $

l+2,r43
156,32 1

(40e,456)
(2+,288)

369,559 $

r+7,8t3
552,099

(s 17,e07)

(r l,050)

386,967
152,982

(226,6 l5)

(603,337)
(34,036)

$ 17,399 $ (46,335) $

3,++3,8O9
220,ro2 $

3,397,+7+
5+O,5t + $

3,617,576
(32+,03e)

4,1 58,0903.+26 ,+r0
$ 3.4-43 ,809 fi 3,397,47+ fi 3,617,576 $ 4,158,090 $ 3,834,051

44.100h, 41 .2O%n 4I .7O%o 44.90o/o 40.looh

NETPENSIONLIABILITY-ENDING(")-(b) $ 4,366,124 $ 4,8++,632 $ 5,056,328 $ 5,092,52+ fi 5,737,283

$ 1,619,763 $ 1,700,4s0 $ 1,776,788 $ r,B+7,663 $ i,912,275

NET PE,NSION LIABILITY AS A
PERCENTAGE, OF COVERED
EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 269.60'/o 284.900k 28+.600h 27 5.6o0/o 300.00%

NOTES TO SCHEDULE:
Until a full 1O-ycar trcnd is compilcd, only availablc information is shown. Thc mcasurcmcnt datc is Dcccnbcr 31, ninc months prior

to thc fiscal ycar cnd. Amoturts rccognizcd ir-r thc fiscal ycar rcprcscnt changcs bctwccn thc currcnt and prior mcasurcmcnt datcs.
Total pcnsion liability br 2014,2016 and 2018 wcrc dctcrmincd from thc bcgining of thc ycar total pcnsion liability, using thc roll
forward proccdurc allowcd by GASB 68.

Covcrcd cmploycc payroll is contributions by fircfightcrs dividcd by thcir contribution ratio.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM PI-{N 1OI9O CITY
SCHEDULE OF PE,NSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution

Contributions in rclation to thc actuarially
dctcrmined contributiorr

Contribution dcfi cicncy (cxccss)

Covcrcd cmploycc payroll

Contributions as a pcrccntagc of c<tvcrcd
crnpk>ycc payroll

Last Five Fiscal Years

20r5 20 l6 2017 20lB 2019

$ 1,331,684$ 1,299,125 $ i,369,4.31 fi r,337,74+ ff 1,307,905

1,299,t25 369 431 t ,337 ,7 4+ 1,307,905 1,331,684

$ $ $ $

$ 8,798,850 $ 9,647,016 $ 9,670,777 $ 9,636,+9+ $ 10,073,473

14.760/o l+.200h 13.830/0 13.570h 13.22Yo

NOTES TO SCHEDIILE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Valuation Datc
Notes

Mcthods and Assumptions fJscd to Dctcrminc Contribution Ratcs:
Actuarial Cost Mcthod
Amortization Mcthod
Rcmainins Amortization Pcriod
Assct Valuation Mcthod
Inflation
Salary Incrcascs
Invcstmcnt Rate of Rcturn
Rctircmcnt Agc

Mortality

Othcr inftrrmation
Notcs

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution ratcs arc calculatcd as of
Dcccmbcr 3l and bccomc cflcctivc in.January thirtccn months latcr

Entry Agc Normal
Levcl Pcrccntage of Payroll, Closcd
27 ycars
l0 ycar smoothcd rnarkct; 1504 soft corridor
2.s}o/n
3.5olo to 10.50% includine inflation
6.7 5%o

Expcricncc-bascd tablc of ratcs that arc spccific to thc City's plan of
bcncfits. Last updatcd ftrr thc 2015 valuation pursuant to an
RP2000 Combincd Mortality Tablc with Bluc Collar Adjustmcnt
with malc ratcs multiplicd by 109% and fcmalc ratcs multiplics by
10304 and proicctcd on a fully gcncrational basis with scalc BB

Thcrc werc no bcncfit changcs during thc ycar
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM PI.AN 3OI9O HEALTH DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Five Fiscal Years

2015 2016 20t7 2018 20 I9

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution

Contributions in rclation to thc actuarially
dctcrmincd contributiorr

Contribution dcfi cicncy (cxccss)

Covcrcd crnpkrycc payroll

Contributions as a pcrccntagc ofcovcrcd
cmploycc payroll

$ 3s,246 $ +0,367 $ 44,912 $ 46,37+ $ 44,396

35,246 40,367 ++,930 +6,37+ 4+,396

$ $ $ (lB) $ $

$ 41s,734 $ 440,225 $ 443,482 $ +37,705 ff 438,72s

NOTES TO SCFIEDI,ILE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTTONS

Valuation Datc:
Notcs

Mcthods and Assumptions lJscd to Dctcrminc Contribution Ratcs:
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Mcthod
Rcmaining Amortization Pcriod
Assct Valuation Mcthod
Inflatir>n
Salary Incrcascs
Invcstrncnt Ratc of Rcturn
Rctircmcnt Age

Mortality

Othcr inlbrmation:
Notes

9.17o/o 10. l3% 10.590A I0.l2o/n

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution ratcs arc calculatcd as of
Dcccmbcr 31 and becomc c{fcctivc inJanuary thirtccn months latcr

Entry Aec Normal
Lcvcl Pcrccntagc of Payroll, Closed
25 ycars
l0 ycar smoothcd markcq l57o soft corridor
2.5oo/o

3.5o/o t<'t 10.50% including inflation
6.7 5o/o

Expcriencc-bascd table of ratcs that arc spccific to the City's plan of
benefits. Last updated fur thc 2015 valuation pursuant to an
RP2000 Combincd Mortality Tablc with Bluc Collar Adjutmcnt
with malc ratcs multiplicd by 109% and fcmale ratcs rnultiplics by
l03Vo and proicctcd on a fully gcncrational basis with scalc BB

Thcrc wcrc no bencfit changcs during thc ycar

B.+Boh
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

BROWNWOOD FIRE,FIGHTER'S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Five Fiscal Years

20r5 20i6 2017 20lB 2019

Rcquircd contributions

Contributions in rclation to thc actuarially
dctcrmincd contributiorr

Contribution defi cicncy (cxcess)

Covcrcd cmpkrycc payroll

Contributions as a pcrccntage ofcovcrcd
cmploycc payroll

$ 323,975 $ 340,092 $ 355,382 $ 369,559 $ 386,967

323,97 5 340,092 355,382 369,559 386,967

$ $ $ $ $

$ 1,619,763 $ 1,700,450 $ 1,776,788 $ t,847,663 fi 1,9t2,275

20.00% 2O.0Oo/o 20.0oo/o 20.000k 20.24%"

NOTES TO SCHEDIILE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

V;rluation D:rtc:
Notcs

Mcthods and Assumptions lJscd to Dctcrminc Contribution Ratcs:
Actuarial Cost Mcthod
Amortization Mcthod
Rcmaining Arrrortization Pcriod
Inflation
Salary Incrcascs

Invcstmcnt Ratc of Rcturn
Rctircmcnt Agc
Mortality

Othcr inftrrmation:
Notcs

Contribution rcquircmcnts arc not actuarially dctcrmincd. Statc law
rcquircs that cach changc in plan bcncfits adoptcd by thc Fund must
first bc approvcd by an cligiblc actuary, certifying that thc
contribution commitmcnt by thc fircfightcrs and thc assumcd city
c<>ntributi<>n ratc t()gcthcr providc an adcquatc contribution
arrilngcmcnt

EntryAgc
Actuarially dctcrmined using an opcn, lcvcl pcrcentagc of peryroll
39 ycars
3.25o/o

3.257o plus prom()ti()n, stcp and longcvity incrcascs that vary
by scrvicc

7.25Yo, nct of pcnsion plan invcstmcnt cxpcnsc, includine inflation
Agc 50 with 20 ycars of scrvicc
RP2000 Combincd Hcalthy Mortality Tablcs for malcs and for
fcmalcs (scx distinct) projcctcd to 2024 by scalc AA

Thcrc wcrc no bcncfit changcs durine thc ycar

53



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE,
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Original
Budgct

Final
Budgct (Scc Notc A)

Actual
Budgctary Basis

Variancc with
Final Budgct

Positivc
(Ncgativc)

RESOTTRCES (TNFLOWS):
Ad val<>rcm tzrxcs

Salcs tax
Othcr taxcs
Fincs
Liccnsc and lccs

Chargcs for scrviccs
Intcrgovcrnmcntal
Misccllancous

Total Chargcs to Appropriations (Outflows)

EXCESS CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS

FTIND BALANCE - BEGINNING

5,458,58I $

5,580,000
3,65B,900

250,000
77,000

42 r,800
I,540,205

r 20,000

5,458,58 r $

5,580,000
3,6s8,900

250,000
77,O00

42 1,800

1,540,205
120,000

$ 129,46+
+7,839

190,99 I

33,955
+T,B2B

(8,842)
t7,lo4

1.05 7 ,B l4

$ 17,106,486 $ 18,616,639 $ I 510 153

$ 5,588,045
5,627,839
3,849,891

283,955
1 1B,B2B

41 2,958
l,557,309
1,177 ,BI+

Total Rcsourccs (Inflows)

CHARGES TO APPROPRTATTONS (OUTFLOWS)
City Council
Administration
City Sccrctary
Financc,/Acc()unting
Municipal Court
Policc
Firc
Dcvclopmcnt scrviccs
Strcct
Hcalth
Cornmunity scrviccs
Intcrgovcrnmcntal
utilitybilling
Community facilitics
Opcrations support
Purchasing/warchousc
Parks and rccrcation
Flcct scrviccs
City Attorncy
Community dcvclopmcnt
Public works,/cnsinccrins
Emcrgcncy rnanagcmcnt
Human Rcsourccs
Firc Marshal
Gcncral fund contingcncy
Inftrrm:rtion tcchnology
Transportation muscum
Othcr

58,677 $

268,633
I12,B7B
370,+99
32+,976

5,091 ,301
3,s90,458

BB3,B27

1,896,446

277,258
631,550
252,657
306,900
+57,++O

165,71 I

179,490
t,620,632

718,8+9
202,889

58,677 $

268,633
1T2,B7B

370,+99
324,976

5,09 I ,301
3,610,103

BB3,B27

1,896,++6

277,258
63 I,550
252,657
306,900
+62,++O

17 1,220
179,+90

1,625,770
7 rB,B+9

202,889

58,+2t $

266,9+6
108,807
367,233
328,09 r

5,448,993
3,834,680

8s2,737
2,023,226

281,6lB
630,5 I B
252,051
305,5 l4
496,752
170,555
1B 1,609

t,607,329
l,060,s69

200,20t
68,527

5+0,322
19,237

263,769
r23,+33
65,082

786,930
T85,I27
67,97+

$ 17,106,486

$ 256
1,687

+,o7 |
3,266

(3, l l5)
(357,6s2)
(22+,s77)

31,090
( i 26,780)

(4,360)
1,O32

606
1,386

(34,312)
665

(2,1 l e)

IB,++I
(3+1,720)

2,688
(68,s27)
5+,O78

2,023
23,68+
2+,302

(165,082)
( I 82,097)

(2,162)
(67,97+)

594,400
2\,260

287,+53
r+7,73s

( 1 00,000)
58 1,833

182,965

594,+OO

21,260
287,+53
1+7,735

( I 00,000)
604,833
l82,965

$ 19,126,717 $ 19, 185,009 $ 20,596,251 $ (1.41r ,2+2)

$ (2,020,231)

4,690,890

$ (2,078,523) $

890

(r ,979,6 r 2) $

4,690,890

$ 2,670,659 $FLTI\D BALANCE - ENDING

5+

2.61 2,367 $ 2,71t,278 $

98,91 I



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE A: EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN BUDGETARY INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS AND
GAAP REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Sources/infl ows of Rcsourccs:

Actual arnounts (budgctary basis) available for appropriation from thc budgctary comparison schcdule .

The City budgcts f<rr sales tax bascd on thc amount collcctcd rathcr than on thc modificd accruai basis.

Thc City budgcts Hotcl Occupancy Tax nct of thc payrncnts to other cntitics rathcr than sross.

Total rcvcnucs as rcported ()n thc statcmcnt ofrcvcnucs, expcnditurcs and changcs in fund balanccs
govcrnrncntal Fund,

Ijscs,/outfl ows of Rcsourccs:

Actual arnount (budgctary basis) chargcs to appropriations from thc budgctary comparison schcdulc

The City budgcts for salarics on thc cash basis rather than on thc modificd accrual basis

Thc City budgcts for compcnsatcd abscnccs on thc cash basis rathcr than thc modificd accrual basis.

Thc City budgcts Hotcl Occupancy Tax nct of thc paymcnts to othe r cntitics rathcr than gross.

Total cxpcnditurcs as rcported on thc statcmcnt ofrcvcnucs, cxpcnditurcs and changes in fund balanccs
govcrnrncntal fund.

$ I B,616,639

90,004

191,910

$l

$ 20,s96,251

36,209

I 15,31 I

191,910

$ 20,939,68l
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BAI-ANCE SHEETS

September 30,2019

Total Dcbt
Scrvicc Fund

Total Capital
Projccts Fund

Total Special
Rcvcnuc Fund

Total Other
Govcrnmcntal

Funds
ASSETS

ASSETS:
Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Rcccivablcs, nct
Intcrnal balanccs
Rcstrictcd asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc
Accrucd payroll

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revcnuc

FUND BALANCES:
Rcstrictcd for:

Dcbt scrvicc
Construction
Fabis Park

Committcd to:
C<>nstruction

Assigncd to:
Hcalth and nutrition programs

IJnassigncd

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

$ $ 3 18,773 $ (76,1 +2) $ 2+2,63r
25

2+5,97 |
2r,92s

242,6sO

73,595
2r,925
69,288 123,252

25

172,376

50,i i0

$ 164,808 $ +42,025 $ 146,369 $ 753,202

$ $ 4,s61 $ 29,5+8 $

6,654
34, I 09

6,6s4

$ s 4,561 $ 36,202 $ 40 763

$ 73,595 $ $ $ 73,595

$ 91,213 $

432,903

4,561

49,778

91,213
432,903

+9,778

4,561

b$

52,r94
8,1 95

52,19+
8,195

$ 91,213 $ 437,+6+ $ 110,167 $ 638,844

$ 164,808 $ 442,02s $ 146,369 $ 753,202
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVE,NUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BAI-ANCES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Total Dcbt
Scrvicc Fund

Total Capital
Projects Fund

Total Spccial
Rcvcnuc Fund

Total Othcr
Govcrnmcntal

Funds

REVENUES:
Ad valorcm taxcs
Grants and contributions
Other rcvcnuc
Intcrcst

Total Rcvcnucs

EXPENDITURES:
Dcbt scrvicc:

Principal
Intcrcst

Capital outlay
Spccial rcvcnuc fund

Total Expcnditurcs

E,XCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES :

Transfcrs in
Transfcrs out

Total Othcr Financing Sourccs

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OFYEAR

29,9 l6
712 B++ t37

$ i,455,037 $ 52,8++ $ 1.228.4s0 $ 2,736,331

$ 1 ,41 7,409 $

4s,000 869,680
357,633

1,+17 ,+Og
914,680
387,549

I6,693

$ $

7 7

$ 960,780 $
+64,767

960,780
+6+,767

235,309
1,268,078

$ $

235,309

$ 1,425,547 $ 235,309 $ 1,268,078

$ 29,490 $ (182,46s) $ (39,628)

$2

$0 92,603)

$ 33,720 $ $ 42,000 $ 75,720
(1 39,302)( l 39,302)

$ 33,720 $ (139,302) $ 42,ooo $ (63,s82)

$ 63,210 $

28,003

(32t,767)

759,231 t07 795

(256,1 85)

895,029

$ 2,372 $

$ 91,213 $ +37,+6+ _$_____-l_l9J_qz_ $ 638,844
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ASSETS

ASSETS:
Poolcd cash and cash equivalcnts
Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Invcstmcnts
Receivablcs, nct
Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpensc
Land hcld lor dcvclopmcnt
Rcstrictcd asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND F-UND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc
Accrucd salarics
Intcrnal balanccs
Compcnsatcd abscnces

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOTIRCES:
IJnavailablc rcvcnuc

FLIND BALANCES:
Nonspcndablc:

Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpcnsc

Rcstrictcd for:
Municipal Court
Tourism promotion
Vchicular child safcty
Law enforccmcnt
Drug awarcncss cducation
Lchnis Muscum
Bcautification

l-lnassigncd

TOTAL F"UND BALANCES

CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BAI-ANCE SHEETS

September 30,2019 and 20lB

2019 2018

$ (21,401) $

7,r74
5,606,237
2,099,629

26,+7 5

3,9+9
350,000
116 +0+ l36,8l3

$ B.1BB ,+67 $ 6,807,930

(576,658)
37,362

5,519,589
t,662,932

26,277
1,615

$ 778,062
109,430
2t,925

1,167,421

63 I,268
7 3,158

$

1.052 ,t I J

$ 2,076,838 $ 1,7s6,599

$ 26s,762 $ 360,++r

$ 26,+7s $

3,9+9
26,277

1,615

28,60+
28,978
21,832
26,353

3,+9+
3,22+

654

36,329
39,410
23,796
2+,259

3,49+
7,901

6+7

s,702,30+ 4,527,162

$ 5.845 ,867 $ 4,690,890

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FLIND BALANCES

5B

$ B,l88,467 $ 6.807 ,930



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

. GENERAL FUND
C O MPARATIVE, STATEMENTS OF RE,VENUES, EXPEND ITURES

AND CHANGE,S IN FUND BAI.ANCES

For the Years Ended September 30,2019 and 20lB

20 l9 2018
REVtrNUES:

Ad valorcm taxcs
Saics taxcs
Othcr taxcs
Fincs
Liccnscs and fccs
Chargcs {irr scrviccs
Intcrgovcrnmcntal
Intcrcst
Grants and contributions
Misccllancous

Total Rcvcnucs

EXPENDITI-IRE,S:
City Council
Administration
City Sccrctary
Financc/acc<)unting
Municipal court
Policc
Firc
Dcvclopmcnt scrvices
Strcct
Hcalth
Cornmunity scrviccs
Intcrgovcrnmcntal
Utility billing
Cornmunity facilitics
OpcrzLtions supp()rt
Purchasine/warchousc
Parks and rccrcation
Flcct scrviccs
City Attorncy
Cornmunity dcvclopmcnt
Public works/crrginccring
Emcrecncy mzrn2rgcmcnt
FIuman rcsourccs
Firc Marshal
Gencral fund continecncy
Inftrrmation tcchnology
Transportation musclun
Motei tax to CVB
Othcr

Total Expcnditurt's

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITI]'RES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfcrs in
Capital lcast' procccds
Procccds from salc ofcapital asscts

Nct Othcr Financins Sourccs (IJscs)

NET CHANGES IN FLTND BALANCES

FLIND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

$ 5,588,045 $

5,7 t7 ,443
4,041,80 I

283,955
I1B,B2B
+12,958

r ,55 7,309
to+,7 47

'946,32r

5,367,436
5,+t | ,+53
3,92+,067

238,37 5

t32,347
3B6,082

1,416,297
61,071
46,069

164,66 1126 746
$ I B,B9B,553 $ t7.t+7 ,85B

$ $54,421
268,303
I 1 1,408
363,247
332,7 t7

5,489,835
3,892,630

854,+2+
2,O3r,54r

283,226
630,5 1B

252,O5r
307,43r
+97,345
170,738
l87,687

|,614,720
1,070,86 I

203,r35
68,s27

536, I 32
19,237

265,89 l
r 28,009
65,082

79r,+25
185,256
191,9 l0
67 ,97 +

5 7,669
255,828
to3,572
35+,+36
312,6t4

+,754,O23
3,427,889

803,893
2,086,+r7

27 0,7 48
620,246
240,796
295,039
430,898
r42,605
r72,987

|,s21,927
546,+99
192,s01
9s,263

5 60,1 48
10,280

260,50s
139,5 1 1

Is7,+39
7 42,709
167,r39
410,148
2l r70

$ 20,939,68I $ l9.r 54,899

$

$ (2,041,128) $ (2.007 ,041)

1,736,432 $
1 ,+t | ,233

+a ++o

$ 3,196. I 0s $ 3,659,007

$ r,15+,977

4,690,890

$ 1,65 1,966

s,038,924

$ 4,690,890

3,111,7r+
507,832
39,+6t

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

s9

$ s,845,867



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMPARATIVE STATEME,NTS OF NET POSITION

September 30,20i9 and 2018

20i9 201 8

CURRENT ASSETS:
Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Poolcd cash dcsignatcd for spccial prcjccts
Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Invcstmcnts
Invcstmcnts dcsignatcd f<rr closurc and postclosurc
Accounts rcccivablc, nct
Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpcnscs

Total Currcnt Asscts

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Rcstrictcd asscts

Capital asscts, nct
Total Noncurrcnt Asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFI1RRED OU'IFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Amounts rclatcd lo pcnsions

TOTAL DEFERRED OU'IFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc
Accrucd salarics
Capital lcascs payablc
Tax notc payablc
Bonds payablc
Compcnsatcd abscnccs

Total Currcnt Liabilitir:s

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS
Tax notc payablc
Bonds payzrblc

Total Liabilitics Payablc lrom Rcstrictcd Asscts

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Compcnsatcd abscnccs
Nct pcnsion liability
Cust<>rncr watcr mctcr dcposits
Capital lcascs payzrblc

Tzrx notc payablc
Bonds paryablc

Accrucd landfill closurc and postclosurc carc costs

Total Noncurrcnt Liabilitics

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Amounts rclatcd to pcnsions

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSIITION:
Invcstcd in capital asscts, nct ofrclatcd dcbt
IJnrcstrictcd

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 46,133 $

s7,725
3,550

491,561
|,61+,573
1,604,35 i

673,215
3,360

7,697
57,725

3,550
5,1+3

r,577,67+
r,523,r20

763,92+
1,546

$ 468 $ 3,940,379

$ $ 837,692
37.O7B ,824

$ 36,294,273 $ 37,916,516

$ 40,788,741 $ 4.1 ,856,89s

867,068
35,+27,205

$ Bs r,061 $ 277 ,077

$ 851,061 $ 277,077

$ +87 ,2t r

32,O33
r ,04.1 ,945

66, I 53

r,+o2,303
l5 I ,920

3lB,i82
IB,42B

869,486
63,426

1,3+6,425

$

r39,270
$ 3.i8r ,565 fi 2,7s5,217

$ t,4+7 $

t7,697
79+

13,575

$ 19,144 $ 14,369

$ 77,668 $

2,3ts,oo7
B+7,92+

I ,946, 107

B+,812
1,3 1 6,00 1

823,2t7
r,739,+72

67,600
r2,654,293r |,222,s76

T82 168 5.551 ,966
$ 22,591.450 $ 22,237,361

fi 25,792,r59 $ 25.006 ,947

6

$ 72,322 $ +77,3+s

fi 72,322 $ +77,3+5

$ t9,7+8,225
(3,972,90+)

fi 20,323,857
(3.674,177)

60

$ rs,775,321 $ r 6,649,680



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, E,XPENDITURES

GES

For the Ye ars Ended September 30, 20 i 9 and 20 I B

201 9 201B
OPERATING REVENUES:

Chargcs for scrviccs
Misccllancous

Total Opcratins Rcvcnucs

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Pcrsonncl scrwices

Supplics
Contractual
Maintcnancc
Sundry chargcs
Support scrviccs
Dcprcciation and amortization

Total Opcratine Expcnscs

OPERATING GAIN

NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE:
Salc of cquiprncnt
Gran ts and contributions
Intcrcst incomc
Intcrcst cxpcnsc

Nct Non-Opcratins Rcvcnue (Expcnsc)

GAIN BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS:
Opcrating transfcrs in
Opcrating transfcrs out

Nct Opcratins Transfcrs

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

$ r6,337,938 $ 17,001,363

$ 3,7 16,76+ $

1,189,31B
3,810,B84
1,054,350
r,t+6,9+l
|,24r,60+

3,5+2,+65
r,l2+,+BB
3,888,556
1,07 1,126

r,o+7,772
1, l 29,200
2,9+0,+t2

$ 16,206,280 $
I 31,658

16,87+,39+
126,969

3.051 ,21 0

$ 15,211,071 7+4,Or9$ 14.

$ 1,126,867 fi 2.2s7 ,3++

$ r27,+31 $

19,977
7O,B4B

(537.+82)

6l,608
20,75+
58,593

(562,287)
$ (3 1e.226) $ (421,332)

$ 807,641 $ I ,836,01 2

$ 187,080 $

0.869.080)
267,610

(3.357.008)

$ (r,682,000) $ (3,08e.3e8)

$ (874,35e) $

16,649,680

(l,253,386)

17,903,066

$ Is.7 75,32r $ 16,649,680

6l
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Krischke CPA' PC 201 CENTER AVENUE
P. O. BOX 1645
BROIVN\,VOOD, TEKA.S 76804
325-646-6576
325-646-3476 F-{-\

D. A. 66Tony" Krischke, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTE,RNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCtr AND OTHE,R IVIATTtrRS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINA]\CIAL STATEN,IE,NTS PERFORIVIE,D

ORDANCE WITH

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Brownwood, Texas

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards genelally accepted in the United States of Ame rica and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Gouernnent Arditing Sltandards issued by the Comptloller General of the United States, the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component nnits,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund inlormation of City of Brownwood, Texas, as ol and for the year ended
September 30, 20 I 9, and the related notes to the financial statements, r,vl-rich collectively comprise Citv ol Brolvn',vood, Texas basic
financial statements, and have issued my l'eport tirereon datedJanuary 7 ,2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit ol the financial staten'lents, I considered City of Bror,vnrvood, Texas internal control over
financial leporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedr-rres that are altpropriate in the circumstances for the pnrpose
olexpressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the puli)ose of expressing an opinion on the eflectiveness of City
of Brolvnr,tood, Texas internal control. Accordingly, I do not expless an opinion on the eflectiveness of Citv olBrolvnr,vood, Texas
internal control.

A defcienclt in inturnal conhol exists lvhen tl're design or opelation ola control does not allow management or employees, in the norrnal
course olperlorming their assigued functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timelv basis. A material tpeakness

is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in iuternal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matelial
misstatement ol the entity's hnancial statements wiil not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A sigtijt;ant
dejciency is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

NIy considelation of internal control r'r,as lor"the limited pllrpose described in the first palagraph of this section and was not designe d
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significar-rt deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in intelnal control that I considel to be material rveaknesses. Holvever, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Cornpliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about lvhether City ol Brownr,vood, Texas financial statements are free from material
misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with celtain provisions of larnu's, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material e{Iect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliar-rce u'ith those provisiorls \rvas not an objective olmy audit, and accordingly, I do not express such
an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other mattels that are required to be reported under
Goaentnrcnt Atdihng Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope ol my testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opiriiou on the effectiveness olthe entity's internal control or on compliance. 'Ihis report is an integral
part of an audit perlormed in accordance lvith Gouernrrrcnt Auditing Standards in considering the entity's inter-nal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/4,rtLctk Pc-
Iirischke CPA, PC

Jantrary 7,2020 ,cm
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Krischke CPA, PC 2Ol CENTERAVENUE
P. O. BOX 1645
BRO\,VNWOOD, TEXAS 76804
32s-646-6576
325-646-3476 F-{\

D. A. (6Tonytt Krischke, CPA

INDtrPE,NDtrNT AUDITOR,S REPORT ON COMPLIANCtr FOR EACH IVIAJOR PROGRAM
C tr

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Brownwood, Texas

Report on Cornpliance for Each Major Federal Prograrn

I have audited City of Brownr,vood, Texas compliance r,vith the types of compliance leqnirements described in the OMB
Con(tliance Supplenrcnt that could have a direct and material effect on each of City olBrou,nrvood, Texas major federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 20 19. City of Brownwood, Texas major federal programs are identified in tire summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Managetnent's Re sponsibility

Nlanagement is responsible for compliance rvith federal statlrtes, regulations, and the terrns and conditions of its federal
ar,vards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Re sp onsi bility
Nfy responsibiliw is to express an opinion on compliance lor each of Citv olBro."vnlvood, Texas major federal programs based
on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards genelaliy accepted in the United States of America; the standalds applicable to financial audits contained in
Got'ernrnentAtditing Standards, issued b;, the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Fednal Regulations Part 200, Untform Administratite Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Fednal Awards
(IJniform Guidance). Those standards arrd the Uniform Guidance requile that I plan and pellolm tl're audit to obtain
r-easonable asstlrance about whether noncompliance with the types ol compliance requirements r-efen'ed to above that could
have a direct and material eflect on a majol federal program occtrrred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about City of Brorvnrvood, Texas compliance with those requirements and qrerforming such other procedures as I considerrcd
necessary in the circumstances.

I believe that my audit plovides a reasonable basis lol my opinion on compliance for each major lederal program. Hou,'ever,
my audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Blon'nwood, Texas compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Progratn

In my opinion, City of Brownwood,'fexas, complied, in all material respects, with the types olcompliance reqr-rirements refelred
to above that could iral'e a direct and material effbct or1 each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30,
2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Cornpliance

N'Ianagement of Ciq, of Brou,nwood, Texas, is lesponsible for establishing and maintaining eflective internal control over
compliance r,vith the types of compliance requit'ements referred to above. In planning and performing my audit of compliance,
I considered City of Blor,vnr,r'ood, Texas internal control over compliance with the types of requirements tl'rat could have a

direct and mater-ial e{Iect on each major lederal program to determine the auditing procedures tirat are appropriate in the
circumstances for the pllrpose of expressing ar-r opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accoldance r,vith the Unifolm Guidance, but r-iot for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the efibctiveness olinternal control over compliance. Accoldinglv, I do not express an oirinion on the e{Iectiveness of City
of Brownwood, Texas internal control over comltliance.

.GED;
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A dejciaryt in inte,rnal control. otler cornpli.ance exists when the design or operation ol a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal coul'se of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance lvith a type of compliance reqtrirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A rnakt'ial. uteakn.ess in intental.

conlrol oaer cornpliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance lvith a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signif cant def ciency in infumal. conb'ol ora contpli.ance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requilement of a lederal program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enougl-r to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was lor the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and lvas not designed to identily all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material
weaknesses. F{owever, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose olthis report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing olinternal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report
is not suitable for any other purpose.

@L uk Pu)
Krischke CPA, PC

January 7,2020
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

SCHEDULE OF EXPE,NDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Fcdcral
CFDA

Numbcr

Pass Through
Entity

ID Numbcr
Amount

Expcndcd

Amount
Expcndcd to

Sub-recipicnts
FEDERALASSISTANCE:

U.S. Departmcnt olAgriculturc:
Passcd through Tcxas Dcpartmcnt of Statc Hcalth Scrviccs:

Spccial Supplcmcntal Nutrition Program lor Womcn, Inlants
and Childrcn 10.557
Registcrcd Dictician 10.557
Pecr Counsclor 10.557
Clicnt Expcricncc 10.557
Lactation Grant 10.557

Total U.S. Departmcnt of Agriculturc

IJ.S Dcpartment ofl usticc:
Passcd through Officc of thc Tcxas Govcrnor CriminalJusticc

Division:
Edward Byrnc Mcmorial Justicc Assistancc

Grant Prosram 16.738

Gcncral Scrviccs Admin istration:
Non-monctary pass through lrom Tcxas Facilitics Commission:
Donation olFcdcral Surplus Pcrsonal Propcrty 39.003

IJ.S. Dcpartmcnt of Hcalth and Human Scrviccs:
Aging Clustcr:
Passcd through Wcst Ccntral Tcxas Council of Govcrnmcnts:

Spccial Prosrams for thc Aging, Titlc III, Part C, Nutrition
Scrviccs 93.045

Total Aging Clustcr

Passcd through Tcxas Hcalth and Human Scrviccs Commission:
Social Scrviccs Block Grant 93.667
Hospital Prcparcdncss Program (HPP) and Public Hcalth

Emcrgcncy Prcparcdncss (PHEP) Aliencd Coopcrativc
Agrccmcnts 93.074

Immunization Coopcrativc Agrccmcnts 93.268
Prcvcntivc Health and Hcalth Scrviccs Block Grant 93.758

Total U.S. Dcpartmcnt of Hcalth and F{uman Scrviccs

Total Fcdcral Assistancc
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FE,DERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2019

NOTE I: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of City of Brownwood, Texas under programs of the federal government for the year ended
September 30,20 19. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Fedual Regulations Part 200, Unform Administratioe Requirements, Cost Principles, Audit
Requirementsfor FederalAwarls (lJniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion
of the operations of City of Brownwood, Texas, it is not intended to and does not present the net position,
changes in net position, or cash flows of City of Brownwood, Texas.

NOTE, 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis ofaccounting. Such expenditures
are recognized lollowing the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

The City of Brownwood, Texas has elected to not use the l0 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as

allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

SCHEDULE OF FINDTNGS AND qUE,STIONED COSTS

For the Year ended September 30, 2019

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es)identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10.557 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program lor Women, Infants and
Children

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None noted

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Qyestioned Costs

None noted

Section IV - Prior Year Audit Findings

No prior year findings

$ 750,000

X yes no
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